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OTHER INFORMATION
For the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018, QIAGEN N.V. prepared its quarterly report under United States generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). This quarterly report is furnished herewith as Exhibit 99.1 and incorporated by reference
herein.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
QIAGEN N.V.
BY:

/s/ Roland Sackers
Roland Sackers
Chief Financial Officer

Date:

4

July 31, 2018

Table of Contents
EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
No.

Exhibit

99.1

U.S. GAAP Quarterly Report for the Period Ended June 30, 2018

5

Table of Contents
Exhibit 99.1
QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
U.S. GAAP QUARTERLY REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Financial Information
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2018 (unaudited) and December 31, 2017

2

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (unaudited) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018
and 2017

4

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income (unaudited) for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

6

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (unaudited) for the six months ended June 30, 2018
and 2017

7

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited) for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and
2017

8

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)

9

Operating and Financial Review and Prospects

35

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

41

Recent Authoritative Pronouncements

41

Application of Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimates

41

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

42

Contractual Obligations

42

Legal Proceedings

42

Risk Factors

42

1

Table of Contents

QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)
June 30,
2018

Note

December 31,
2017

(unaudited)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $9,257 and $8,008
in 2018 and 2017, respectively
Income taxes receivable
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Long-term assets:
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $584,596 and
$564,588 in 2018 and 2017, respectively
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $1,158,295 and $1,117,423
in 2018 and 2017, respectively
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term assets (of which $6,448 and $17,713 in 2018 and 2017 due from
related parties, respectively)
Total long-term assets
Total assets

$

(11)
(7)

(6)
(6)

(5, 7)

674,413
225,774

657,714
359,198

314,668
43,230
158,235
271,315
1,687,635

329,138
39,509
155,927
106,487
1,647,973

492,027
2,101,461

494,321
2,012,904

565,378
40,211

499,318
39,353

422,353
3,621,430
$ 5,309,065

344,647
3,390,543
$ 5,038,516

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

2

$

Table of Contents
QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par value)
June 30,
2018

Note

December 31,
2017

(unaudited)

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued and other current liabilities (of which $6,808 and $9,028 in 2018 and
2017 due to related parties, respectively)
Accounts payable
Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities (of which $3,075 in 2017 due to related parties)
Total long-term liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Equity:
Preference shares, 0.01 EUR par value, authorized—450,000 shares, no shares
issued and outstanding
Financing preference shares, 0.01 EUR par value, authorized—40,000 shares, no
shares issued and outstanding
Common Shares, 0.01 EUR par value, authorized—410,000 shares, issued—
230,829 shares in 2018 and in 2017
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Less treasury shares at cost— 3,793 and 4,272 shares in 2018 and 2017,
respectively
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

(9)

$

420,993

—

(7)

444,482
60,942
14,777
941,194

244,114
59,205
21,473
324,792

(9)

1,341,496
93,551
408,964
1,844,011

1,758,258
76,727
337,743
2,172,728

(7)
(15)

—
—
(12)
(12)
(12)
(12)

—
—

2,702
1,649,368
1,268,140
(279,644)

2,702
1,630,095
1,247,945
(220,759)

(116,706)

(118,987)
2,540,996
$ 5,038,516

2,523,860
$ 5,309,065

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except share data)
Three months ended
June 30,
2018

2017
(unaudited)

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative, restructuring, integration and other, net
Acquisition-related intangible amortization
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Total other expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share
Weighted-average shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

$

377,196
123,440
253,756

$ 348,990
124,433
224,557

39,633
101,853
48,886
10,051
200,423
53,333

37,899
96,193
58,419
9,681
202,192
22,365

5,104
(15,835)
3,356
(7,375)

$
$
$

45,958
9,143
36,815
0.16
0.16

227,273
233,784

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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1,718
(10,581)
(1,111)
(9,974)
12,391
(1,560)
$ 13,951
$
0.06
$
0.06

227,963
232,681
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QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except share data)
Six months ended
June 30,
2018

2017
(unaudited)

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative, restructuring, integration and other, net
Acquisition-related intangible amortization
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Total other expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share
Weighted-average shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

$

720,764
241,334
479,430

$ 656,696
236,294
420,402

79,154
197,932
80,838
20,231
378,155
101,275

74,838
187,654
92,436
19,358
374,286
46,116

9,778
(30,855)

3,628
(20,743)
(127)
(17,242)

4,903
(16,174)

$
$
$

$ 31,602
$
0.14
$
0.14

227,096
233,158

228,968
233,781

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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(2,728)

85,101
15,990
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0.30
0.30
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QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
(in thousands)
Three months ended
June 30,
2018

2017
(unaudited)

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Gains (losses) on cash flow hedges, before tax
Reclassification adjustments on cash flow hedges, before tax
Cash flow hedges, before tax
Net investment hedge
Losses on marketable securities, before tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments, before tax
Other comprehensive (loss) income, before tax
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, after tax
Comprehensive (loss) income

$
(7)
(7)

36,815

$

13,951

$

(13,851)
12,978
(873)
(6,228)
(3,714)
59,719
48,904
1,501
50,405
64,356

14,164
(11,934)
2,230
16,902
—
(93,298)

(7)

(74,166)
87
$

(74,079)
(37,264)

Six months ended
June 30,
2018

2017
(unaudited)

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Gains (losses) on cash flow hedges, before tax
Reclassification adjustments on cash flow hedges, before tax
Cash flow hedges, before tax
Net investment hedge
Losses on marketable securities, before tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments, before tax
Other comprehensive (loss) income, before tax
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, after tax
Comprehensive income

$

69,111

(7)
(7)

2,369
(6,030)
(3,661)

(7)

8,538
—
(66,329)
(61,452)

$

1,624
(59,828)
9,283 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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31,602
(13,841)
15,678
1,837
(6,228)
(38)
94,061
89,632
(584)
89,048
120,650
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QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(in thousands)
Common Shares

Note

(unaudited)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
Balance at January 1, 2018, as previously reported

Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Treasury Shares

Shares

Amount

Total
Equity

230,829

$

2,702

$ 1,630,095

$ 1,247,945

$

(220,759)

(4,272) $

(118,987) $

2,540,996

230,829

$

2,702

$ 1,630,095

$ 1,247,945

$

(220,759)

(4,272) $

(118,987) $

2,540,996

ASU 2016-01 impact of change in accounting policy

(2)

—

—

—

(942)

942

—

—

ASU 2016-16 impact of change in accounting policy

(2)

—

—

—

(16,096)

—

—

—

(16,096)

ASC 606 impact of change in accounting policy

(2)

—
(118,987) $

(1,306)

Adjusted balance at January 1, 2018
Net income
Unrealized gain, net on hedging contracts

(7)

Realized gain, net on hedging contracts

(7)

Translation adjustment, net
Purchase of treasury shares

—
230,829

—
$ 1,630,095

—

—

—

—

—

—

(1,306)
$ 1,229,601

10,315

—

—

(4,523)

(65,619)
—

—
(819)

—
(29,577)

—

1,298

31,858

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2016

239,707

$
$

2,812

—

Net income

(30,572)

$ 1,649,368

—
$ 1,268,140

$ 1,794,665

$ 1,263,464

—

—

69,111

(4,523)

(12)

BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2018

—
—

(12)

—
19,273

2,523,594

—
—

—
—

—
2,702

—

—
(4,272) $

10,315

—

—
230,829

—
(219,817)

—

—
—

(16)

$

69,111

—
—

Issuance of common shares in connection with stock
plan
Share-based compensation

$

—
2,702

—

(65,619)
(29,577)
1,286
19,273

$

—
(279,644)

—
(3,793) $

—
(116,706) $

2,523,860

$

(333,839)

(5,147) $

(120,006) $

2,607,096

31,602

—

—

—

31,602

191

—

(244,429)

Unrealized loss, net on hedging contracts

—

—

—

—

(16,609)

—

—

(16,609)

Realized loss, net on hedging contracts

—

—

—

—

11,759

—

—

11,759

Unrealized loss, net on marketable securities

—

—

—

—

—

—

Translation adjustment, net

—

—

—

—

94,066

—

—

94,066

Issuance of common shares in connection with stock
plan

—

—

—

(53,302)

—

2,361

56,301

2,999

(12)

Capital repayment

Share-based compensation
BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2017

(8,878)

(110)

—
230,829

—
$

2,702

(244,319)

19,058
$ 1,569,404

—

—

(168)

—
$ 1,241,764

—
$

(244,791)

—
(2,595) $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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—
(63,705) $

(168)

19,058
2,505,374
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QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)
Six months ended
June 30,
2018
2017

Note
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities, net of effects of businesses
acquired:
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash impairments
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs
Share-based compensation expense
Deferred income taxes
(Gain) loss on marketable securities
Other items, net including fair value changes in derivatives
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other long-term assets
Accounts payable
Accrued and other current liabilities
Income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Purchases of intangible assets
Purchases of investments
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchases of short-term investments
Proceeds from redemptions of short-term investments
Cash paid for collateral asset
Other investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs
Capital repayment
Principal payments on capital leases
Proceeds from issuance of common shares
Purchase of treasury shares
Other financing activities
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

(unaudited)
$

(5)
(16)

(6)
(3)

(3)

(9)
(12)

(12)
(8)

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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69,111

$

31,602

107,609
10,644
16,950
19,273
3,325
(3,007)
(11,283)

111,348
3,122
10,432
19,058
(2,101)

1,087
(19,344)
2
(30,718)
(7)
11,246
(8,411)
(239)
166,238

13,480
(18,750)
(7,259)
(1,676)
(4,404)

1,055
(4,384)

2,856
(24,425)
(438)
129,516

(42,866)
7
(23,542)
(15,625)
(172,831)
(176,289)
311,700
(17,362)
16,337
(120,471)

(37,907)
42
(18,116)
(584)
(49,678)
(36,209)

—
—
(657)
1,286
(20,782)
(5,219)
(25,372)
(3,696)
16,699
657,714
674,413

300,155
(243,945)
(674)

65,234
(2,296)
—
(79,514)

2,999
—
(10,187)

$

48,348
5,311
103,661
439,180
542,841
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QIAGEN N.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
1.

Corporate Information

QIAGEN N.V. is a public limited liability company ('naamloze vennootschap') under Dutch law with a registered office at Hulsterweg
82, 5912 PL Venlo, The Netherlands. QIAGEN N.V., a Netherlands holding company, and subsidiaries (we, our or the Company) is a
leading global provider of Sample to Insight solutions to transform biological materials into valuable molecular insights. Our sample
technologies isolate and process DNA, RNA and proteins from blood, tissue and other materials. Assay technologies make these
biomolecules visible and ready for analysis. Bioinformatics software and knowledge bases interpret data to report relevant, actionable
insights. Automation solutions tie these together in seamless and cost-effective molecular testing workflows. We provide these
workflows to four major customer classes: Molecular Diagnostics (human healthcare), Applied Testing (forensics, veterinary testing
and food safety), Pharma (pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies) and Academia (life sciences research). We market our
products in more than 130 countries.
2.

Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation
The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of QIAGEN N.V., its wholly-owned subsidiaries and any
partially owned subsidiaries that the Company has the ability to control. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation. All amounts are presented in U.S. dollars, unless otherwise indicated. Investments in companies
where we exercise significant influence over the operations but do not have control, and where we are not the primary beneficiary, are
accounted for using the equity method. We account for all other investments in nonmarketable equity securities in which we are not
able to exercise significant influence, our cost-method investments, at our initial cost, minus any impairment, plus or minus changes
from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or a similar investment of the same issuer. When there is a
portion of equity in an acquired subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company, we record the fair value of the
noncontrolling interests at the acquisition date and classify the amounts attributable to noncontrolling interests separately in equity in
the condensed consolidated financial statements. Any subsequent changes in the Company's ownership interest while the Company
retains its controlling financial interest in its subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) for interim financial information and generally in accordance with the instructions to
Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
rules and regulations. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include only normal recurring adjustments) necessary for
a fair presentation have been included.
On April 27, 2018, we acquired all shares in STAT-Dx Life, S.L. (STAT-Dx), a privately-held company located in Barcelona, Spain,
and on April 19, 2018, we acquired all remaining shares of a privately held entity in which we held a minority interest. On January 6,
2017, we acquired OmicSoft Corporation, located in Cary, North Carolina (U.S.). Accordingly, at their respective acquisition dates, all
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their respective fair values and our consolidated results of operations
include the operating results from the acquired companies from the acquisition dates.
Certain prior year amounts related to restructuring costs have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. For the
three and six months ended June 30, 2017, $0.9 million and $1.8 million were reclassified out of research and development and $7.7
million and $8.6 million were reclassified out of sales and marketing, respectively, to general and administrative, restructuring,
integration and other, net. These reclassifications had no effect on income from operations.
We operate as one operating segment in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) Topic 280, Segment Reporting. We have a common basis of organization and our products and services are offered
globally. Our chief operating decision maker (CODM) makes decisions based on the Company as a whole. Accordingly, we operate
and make decisions as one reporting unit.
The results of operations for an interim period are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any other interim
period or for the full year. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended
December 31, 2017.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The interim condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared based on the same accounting policies as those applied and
described in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2017 except for the changes described below in connection with
the adoption of new standards and interpretations as of January 1, 2018.
Adoption of New Accounting Standards
The following new FASB Accounting Standards Updates (ASU) were adopted in 2018:
ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) affects any entity that either enters into contracts with customers
to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets unless those contracts are within the scope
of other standards (e.g., insurance contracts or lease contracts). In August 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No.
2015-14 (ASU 2015-14), Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date which defers the
effective date of ASU 2014-09 to interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The FASB has continued
to issue accounting standards updates to clarify and provide implementation guidance related to Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, including ASU 2016-08 Revenue from Contract with Customers: Principal versus Agent Considerations, ASU 2016-10
Revenue from Contracts with Customers: Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing, and ASU 2016-12 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers: Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients.
We adopted this standard on its effective date, January 1, 2018, using the modified retrospective method, by recognizing the
cumulative effect of initially applying Topic 606 to incomplete contracts as a $1.3 million adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at January 1, 2018. The details of the changes and quantitative impact are discussed in Note 13.
ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities will impact certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. In February
2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-03, Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments—Overall (Subtopic
825-10), which clarified certain aspects of the previously issued ASU 2016-01.
The new guidance makes targeted improvements to existing U.S. GAAP by:
• requiring equity investments (except those accounted for under the equity method of accounting, or those that result in
consolidation of the investee) to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income;
• requiring public business entities to use the exit price notion when measuring the fair value of financial instruments for
disclosure purposes;
• requiring separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of financial
asset (i.e., securities or loans and receivables) on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to the financial statements;
• eliminating the requirement for public business entities to disclose the method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate
the fair value that is required to be disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet; and
• requiring a reporting organization to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the
fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the instrument-specific credit risk (also referred to as “own credit”) when
the organization has elected to measure the liability at fair value in accordance with the fair value option for financial
instruments.
The amendments became effective for our financial statements beginning in the first quarter of 2018 and require adoption using a
cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. Accordingly, upon adoption, we
recorded a cumulative effect adjustment to decrease opening retained earnings at January 1, 2018 by $0.9 million as required for our
equity investments recorded at fair value. The implementation of the amendments is expected to increase the volatility of net income
as gains or losses in future periods will be recognized in net income; however, the extent of any volatility will be dependent upon the
significance of the equity investments.
ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments (a consensus of
the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force), addresses eight classification issues related to the statement of cash flows:
• debt prepayment or debt extinguishment costs;
• settlement of zero-coupon bonds;
• contingent consideration payments made after a business combination;
• proceeds from the settlement of insurance claims;
• proceeds from the settlement of corporate-owned life insurance policies, including bank-owned life insurance policies;
• distributions received from equity method investees;
• beneficial interests in securitization transactions; and
• separately identifiable cash flows and application of the predominance principle.
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We adopted ASU 2016-15 on January 1, 2018 without any impact from the adoption on our condensed consolidated financial
statements.
ASU 2016-16, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventory, aims to improve the accounting for
the income tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of assets other than inventory. This amendment requires an entity to recognize
the income tax consequences of an intra-entity transfer of an asset other than inventory when the transfer occurs. We adopted ASU
2016-16 on a modified retrospective basis resulting in a cumulative-effect reclassification of $16.1 million for unrecognized income
tax effects related to intra-entity transfers of fixed assets and intellectual property rights that occurred prior to adoption from other
current and non-current assets to opening retained earnings as of January 1, 2018.
ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash, requires entities to show the changes in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. As a result, entities will no longer present
transfers between cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. We
adopted ASU 2016-18 on January 1, 2018 using a retrospective transition method to each period presented. There is no impact from
the adoption of ASU 2016-18 on our condensed consolidated financial statements.
ASU 2017-01, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business, clarifies and provides a more robust
framework to use in determining when a set of assets and activities is a business. The amendments in this update should be applied
prospectively on or after the effective date. We adopted this update beginning January 1, 2018 without impact.
ASU 2017-09, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting, clarifies when to account for a
change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award as a modification. Under the new guidance, modification
accounting is required only if the fair value, the vesting conditions, or the classification of the award (as equity or liability) changes as
a result of the change in terms or conditions. The guidance is effective prospectively and we adopted ASU 2017-09 as of January 1,
2018.
ASU 2018-02, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, permits companies to reclassify the stranded tax effects of the U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
on items within accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We early adopted ASU 2018-02
as of April 1, 2018 with no impact as we have no stranded tax effects.
New Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted
The following new FASB Accounting Standards Updates, which are not yet adopted, have been grouped by their required effective
dates:
First Quarter of 2019
ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) aims to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets
and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. ASU 2016-02 will become
effective for us beginning in the first quarter of 2019 and we will evaluate the use of optional practical expedients related to the
reporting at adoption. We will not early adopt this standard and are in the process of implementing changes to our systems, processes
and disclosures. We expect this standard to increase total assets and total liabilities, however, we are currently evaluating the potential
impact that ASU 2016-02 may have on our consolidated financial statements.
ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging Activities, will make more
financial and nonfinancial hedging strategies eligible for hedge accounting. It also amends the presentation and disclosure
requirements and changes how companies assess effectiveness. It is intended to more closely align hedge accounting with companies’
risk management strategies, simplify the application of hedge accounting, and increase transparency as to the scope and results of
hedging programs. The new guidance will become effective for us beginning on January 1, 2019 by applying a modified retrospective
approach to existing hedging relationship as of the adoption date. Under the modified retrospective approach, entities with cash flow
or net investment hedges will make (1) a cumulative-effect adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income so that the
adjusted amount represents the cumulative change in the hedging instruments’ fair value since hedge inception (less any amounts that
should have been recognized in earnings under the new accounting model) and (2) a corresponding adjustment to opening retained
earnings as of the most recent period presented on the date of adoption. We are currently evaluating the potential impact ASU 2017-12
may have on our consolidated financial statements.
ASU 2018-07, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting,
largely aligns the accounting for share-based payment awards issued to employees and nonemployees. ASU 2018-07 is effective for
annual periods beginning January 1, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. We do not expect a material impact from the adoption of ASU
2018-07.
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First Quarter of 2020
ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. provides
financial statement users with more decision-useful information about the expected credit losses on financial instruments and other
commitments to extend credit held by a reporting entity at each reporting date. To achieve this objective, the amendments in ASU
2016-13 replace the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP with a methodology that reflects expected credit losses
and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates. The new
guidance will become effective for us by applying the standard's provisions as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings
beginning on January 1, 2020. We are currently evaluating the potential impact ASU 2016-13 may have on our consolidated financial
statements.
ASU 2017-04, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, removes Step 2 of the
goodwill impairment test. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair
value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. ASU 2017-04 is effective for us for annual periods beginning January 1, 2020
and early adoption is permitted. The new guidance is required to be applied on a prospective basis. We are currently evaluating the
impact the adoption of this new standard will have on our financial position and results of operations.
3.

Acquisitions and Divestitures

Acquisitions
Acquisitions have been accounted for as business combinations, and the acquired companies’ results have been included in the
accompanying condensed consolidated statements of income from their respective dates of acquisition. Our acquisitions have
historically been made at prices above the fair value of the acquired net assets, resulting in goodwill, due to expectations of synergies
of combining the businesses. These synergies include use of our existing infrastructure, such as sales force, shared service centers,
distribution channels and customer relations; to expand sales of an acquired business' products; use of the infrastructure of the
acquired businesses to cost-effectively expand sales of our products; and elimination of duplicative facilities, functions and staffing.
2018 Acquisitions
On April 27, 2018, we acquired all shares in STAT-Dx Life, S.L. (STAT-Dx), a privately-held company located in Barcelona, Spain,
which is developing the next generation of multiplex diagnostics for one-step, fully integrated molecular analysis of common
syndromes using a novel system based on real-time PCR technology and proven QIAGEN chemistries.
The cash consideration totaled $148.8 million. The acquisition included contingent consideration which is recorded as part of the
purchase price based on the acquisition date fair value. Under the purchase agreement, potential contingent payments through 2023
total $44.3 million, of which the fair value of $36.8 million was recorded as purchase price using a probability-weighted analysis of
the future milestones using discount rates between 8.2% and 8.8%. Acquisition related costs of $1.3 million and $2.0 million were
incurred during the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018, respectively, and are included in general and administrative,
restructuring, integration and other expenses, net in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of income.
The allocation of the purchase price is preliminary and is not yet finalized. The preliminary allocation of the purchase price is based
upon preliminary estimates which used information that was available to management at the time the condensed consolidated financial
statements were prepared and these estimates and assumptions are subject to change within the measurement period, up to one year
from the acquisition date. Accordingly, the allocation may change. We continue to gather information about the fair value of all assets
and liabilities, including intangible assets acquired, and the related deferred taxes. The preliminary purchase price allocation for STATDx is as follows:
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STAT-Dx
acquisition

(in thousands)

Purchase Price:
Cash consideration
Fair value of contingent consideration

$
$

Preliminary Allocation:
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Inventories
Income tax receivables
Accounts payable
Accruals and other current liabilities
Fixed and other long-term assets
Developed technology

$

Goodwill
Deferred tax liability on fair value of identifiable intangible assets acquired
$

148,780
36,751
185,531

7,357
1,432
1,868
2,213
(1,412)
(560)
6,434
80,100
97,268
(9,169)
185,531

The weighted average amortization period for the intangible assets is 10.0 years. The goodwill acquired is not deductible for tax
purposes.
Revenue and earnings in the reporting periods since the acquisition date have not been significant. No pro forma financial information
has been provided herein as the acquisition of STAT-Dx did not have a material impact to net sales, net income or earnings per share
on a pro forma basis.
Other 2018 Acquisition
On April 19, 2018, we acquired all remaining shares of a privately held entity in which we held a minority interest. The allocation of
the purchase price is preliminary and is based upon preliminary estimates which used information that was available to management at
the time the financial statements were prepared and these estimates and assumptions are subject to change within the measurement
period, up to one year from the acquisition date. This acquisition was not significant to the overall consolidated financial statements
and as of June 30, 2018, the allocation of the purchase price was preliminary. The acquisition did not have a material impact to net
sales, net income or earnings per share and therefore no pro forma information has been provided herein.
2017 Acquisition
On January 6, 2017, we acquired OmicSoft Corporation, a leading provider of omics data management solutions located in Cary,
North Carolina (U.S.). This acquisition was not significant to the overall consolidated financial statements and as of December 31,
2017, the allocation of the purchase price was final. The acquisition did not have a material impact to net sales, net income or earnings
per share and therefore no pro forma information has been provided herein.
Divestitures
2018 Divestitures
In April 2018, we sold a portfolio of veterinary testing products for $16.4 million and recorded a $6.6 million gain on the sale to other
income (expense), net in the accompanying condensed consolidated statement of income.
4.

Restructuring
2017 Restructuring

During the fourth quarter of 2017, we initiated restructuring initiatives to mitigate the negative impacts stemming from the U.S. tax
reform as further discussed in Note 10. Total pre-tax costs are expected to be between $23 million and $25 million, of which $21
million was incurred through June 30, 2018. Future pre-tax costs between $2 million to $4 million are expected to be incurred in the
remainder of 2018 primarily related to personnel and other costs.
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Since 2017, we have incurred costs related to this restructuring program that have been recorded as follows:

Personnel
Related

(in thousands)

Cost of sales
General and administrative, restructuring, integration and other, net
Total 2017 costs
Cost of sales
General and administrative, restructuring, integration and other, net
Total 2018 costs
Total cumulative costs

$

Contract and
Other Costs

—
6,174
6,174
389
2,430
2,819
8,993

$

Inventory
Write-offs &
Asset
Impairments

$

—
4,583
4,583
—
2,851
2,851
7,434

$

$

3,039
—
3,039
—
1,610
1,610
4,649

$

Total

$

$

3,039
10,757
13,796
389
6,891
7,280
21,076

The following table summarizes the cash components of the restructuring activity.
Personnel
Related

(in thousands)

Costs incurred in 2017

$

Foreign currency translation adjustment
Liability at December 31, 2017
Additional costs in 2018
Release of excess accrual
Payments
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Liability at June 30, 2018

6,174

Contract and
Other Costs

$

48
6,222
3,221
(402)
(4,268)
(59)
$

4,714

4,583

Total

$

10,757

$

50
10,807
6,201
(531)
(9,977)
(30)
6,470

2
4,585
2,980
(129)
(5,709)
$

29
1,756

During the second quarter of 2018, fixed asset impairments of $1.6 million were recorded in connection with this initiative and are
included within general and administration, restructuring, integration and other in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, liabilities of $6.5 million and $10.8 million, respectively, are included in
accrued and other current liabilities in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.
2016 Restructuring
During the fourth quarter of 2016, we initiated a series of targeted actions to support faster sales momentum and improve efficiency
and accountability. The objective with these actions is to ensure that we grow sustainably and consistently in the coming years.
Measures include simplifying our geographic presence with site reductions, focusing resources to shared service centers, and
streamlining selected organizational structures. No additional costs will be incurred related to this program. Cumulative costs for this
program are as follows:
Personnel
Related

(in thousands)

Cost of sales
General and administrative, restructuring, integration
and other, net
Other income (expense), net
Total 2016 costs
Cost of sales
General and administrative, restructuring, integration
and other, net
Total 2017 costs
General and administrative, restructuring, integration
and other, net
Total 2018 releases
Total cumulative costs

$

1,222

Facility
Related

$

$

43

Asset
Impairments
& Disposals

$

10,490

Total

$

11,960

17,998
—
19,220
1,141

6,960
—
7,165
—

8,272
—
8,315
238

22,963
10,946
44,399
—

56,193
10,946
79,099
1,379

8,399
9,540

350
350

9,612
9,850

—
—

18,361
19,740

(72)
(72)
$

205

Contract and
Other Costs

28,688
14

(838)
(838)
$

6,677

(90)
(90)
$

18,075

$

—
—
44,399

$

(1,000)
(1,000)
97,839
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Personnel Related expenses during 2017 and 2016 include reductions in costs of $0.7 million and $2.0 million, respectively, as a result
of forfeitures of share-based compensation in connection with terminations. During the year ended December 31, 2016, Asset
Impairments and Disposals include $21.4 million for intangible asset impairments, $10.9 million for fixed asset abandonments, and
$1.1 million primarily in connection with the write-off of prepaid contract costs. The total $10.9 million of expense included in other
income (expense), net is composed of $8.3 million associated with an impairment of an equity method investment and a disposal of
goodwill of $2.6 million.
The following table summarizes the cash components of the restructuring activity.
Personnel
Related

(in thousands)

Liability at December 31, 2016
Additional costs in 2017
Release of excess accrual
Payments
Facility deferred rent reclassified to restructuring liability
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Liability at December 31, 2017
Release of excess accrual

$

Facility
Related

18,480 $
13,357
(3,083)
(25,586)
—
1,126
4,294
(72)
(2,506)
(8)

Payments
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Liability at June 30, 2018

$

1,708

Contract and
Other Costs

7,882 $
1,798
(1,448)
(7,478)
241
57
1,052
(838)
(214)

$

—
—

Total

5,943 $
9,883
(30)
(14,887)
—
157
1,066
(90)
(88)
(34)

$

854

$

32,305
25,038
(4,561)
(47,951)
241
1,340
6,412
(1,000)
(2,808)
(42)
2,562

At June 30, 2018, $2.6 million of the liability is included in accrued and other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet. At December 31, 2017, $5.6 million of the liability is included in accrued and other current liabilities and $0.8 million
is included in other-long term liabilities in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet.
5.

Investments

We have made strategic investments in certain companies that are accounted for using the equity- or cost-method of accounting. The
method of accounting for an investment depends on the level of influence. We monitor changes in circumstances that may require a
reassessment of the level of influence. We periodically review the carrying value of these investments for impairment, considering
factors such as the most recent stock transactions and book values from the recent financial statements. The fair value of cost and
equity-method investments is estimated when there are identified events or changes in circumstances that may have an impact on the
fair value of the investment. Our cost-method investments do not have readily determinable fair values and are therefore measured at
cost, less any impairment, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or a
similar investment of the same issuer. Additionally, we hold investments in marketable equity securities that have readily determinable
fair values that are classified as available-for-sale. These investments are reported at fair value and with gains and losses recorded in
earnings beginning in January 2018 upon adoption of ASU 2016-01.
Equity Method Investments
As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we had a total of equity-method investments in non-publicly traded companies of $10.9
million and $18.5 million, respectively, which are included in other long-term assets in the accompanying condensed consolidated
balance sheets.
During the second quarter of 2018, we recorded impairments of $6.1 million in other income (expense), net in the accompanying
condensed consolidated statements of income, following changes in the investee's circumstances that indicated the carrying value was
no longer recoverable. Accordingly, the investments were fully impaired.
During 2017, we acquired a 40% interest in MAQGEN Biotechnology Co., Ltd. for $4.0 million and contributed an additional $3.2
million during the three months ended June 30, 2018. We have a commitment to contribute an additional $4.8 million in future
periods. In connection with the 2016 restructuring activities discussed in Note 4, in 2016, we transferred the research and development
activities of our instrumentation business to a new company, Hombrechtikon Systems Engineering AG (HSE), in which we acquired a
19.0% interest for a total obligation of $9.8 million payable over three years. As of June 30, 2018, $3.0 million was included in
accrued and other current liabilities and as of December 31, 2017, $3.1 million was included in accrued and other current liabilities
and $3.1 million was included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. HSE is a variable
interest entity and we are not the primary beneficiary as we do not hold the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact
the economic performance of HSE. Therefore, HSE is not consolidated. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the investment
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had a carrying value of $0.9 million and $1.2 million, respectively, which is included in other long-term assets in the consolidated
balance sheets, representing our maximum exposure to loss.
Cost Method Investments
At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we had a total of cost-method investments in non-publicly traded companies with carrying
amounts of $64.0 million and $33.6 million, respectively, which are included in other long-term assets in the consolidated balance
sheets.
During the second quarter of 2018, we made an additional investment in a non-publicly traded company of $9.3 million. This equity
interest acquired was considered similar to an existing equity interest in the company and as a result, the existing equity interest in the
company was adjusted by $11.7 million during the three months ended June 30, 2018 and a corresponding gain was recorded in other
income (expense), net in the accompanying condensed statements of income. Also during the second quarter of 2018, we acquired all
remaining shares of a privately held entity in which we held a minority interest as discussed in Note 3. The value of the minority
interest investment was revalued in connection with the acquisition by $7.9 million and a corresponding gain was recorded in general
and administrative, restructuring, integration and other, net in the accompanying condensed statements of income.
During the first quarter of 2018, we converted a note receivable from a non-publicly traded company, considered a related party, into
an equity interest in that company. This note held a balance of $11.4 million including principal balance and accrued interest at
conversion. As a result of an orderly transaction for a similar investment of the same issuer, this investment was adjusted by $0.8
million and a corresponding gain was recorded in other income (expense), net in the accompanying condensed statement of income for
the six-months ended June 30, 2018.
Marketable Equity Securities
At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we held 833,333 shares in HTG Molecular Diagnostics, Inc. (HTGM), a publicly traded
company. The investment has a cost basis of $2.0 million with fair values of $2.7 million and $1.7 million as of June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, the fair market value of these shares
decreased $0.3 million and increased $1.0 million, respectively, and were recognized in other income (expense), net. The total
unrealized gain as of June 30, 2018 totaled $0.7 million as compared to the total unrealized loss of $0.3 million as of December 31,
2017. These marketable securities are included in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we held 204,000 shares and 320,424 shares, respectively of Curetis N.V., a publicly traded
company. The investment had a cost basis of $1.4 million and $2.3 million as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively,
with fair values of $1.1 million and $1.5 million as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The total unrealized losses
were $0.3 million and $0.8 million as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. During the three and six months ended
June 30, 2018, the fair market value of these shares decreased $0.3 million and increased $0.2 million, respectively, and were
recognized in other income (expense), net. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, we sold 116,424 shares of Curetis N.V. and
recognized a gain of $0.3 million in other income (expense), net in the accompanying condensed statement of income in connection
with the sale of these shares. This investment is included in short-term investments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as
of June 30, 2018.
6.

Intangible Assets

The following sets forth the intangible assets by major asset class as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
June 30, 2018
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

456,765
834,706
432,202
$ 1,723,673

$ (294,348)
(557,321)
(306,626)
$ (1,158,295)

(in thousands)

Amortized Intangible Assets:
Patent and license rights
Developed technology
Customer base, non-compete agreements and trademarks

$

Unamortized Intangible Assets:
Goodwill

$ 2,101,461
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December 31, 2017
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

407,635
771,893
437,213
$ 1,616,741

$ (280,434)
(544,633)
(292,356)
$ (1,117,423)

$

$ 2,012,904

Table of Contents
The changes in intangible assets in 2018 are summarized as follows:
(in thousands)

Goodwill
499,318 $ 2,012,904
26,639
—
115,700
119,182
(62,020)
—
(4,410)
(5,098)
(9,849)
(25,527)
565,378 $ 2,101,461

Intangibles

$

Balance at December 31, 2017
Additions
Acquisitions
Amortization
Disposals
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Balance at June 30, 2018

$

Cash paid for purchases of intangible assets during the six months ended June 30, 2018 totaled $23.5 million, of which $6.1 million is
related to current year payments for licenses that were accrued as of December 31, 2017 and $1.2 million is related to prepayments
recorded in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Intangible asset additions of $26.6 million
includes $16.2 million of cash paid during the six months ended June 30, 2018, together with $8.4 million of additions that were
accrued as of June 30, 2018 and $2.0 million of additions which were previously recorded as prepayments.
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the six months ended June 30, 2018 resulted from acquisitions and divestitures as
discussed in Note 3 and changes in foreign currency translation.
For the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, amortization expense on intangible assets totaled approximately
$31.6 million and $62.0 million and $35.9 million and $71.3 million, respectively. Amortization of intangibles for the next five years
is expected to be approximately:
Annual
Amortization
(in millions)

Year

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

7.

$
$
$
$
$

103.8
76.6
67.8
53.0
50.1

Derivatives and Hedging

In the ordinary course of business, we use derivative instruments, including swaps, forwards and/or options, to manage potential losses
from foreign currency exposures and interest bearing assets or liabilities. The principal objective of such derivative instruments is to
minimize the risks and/or costs associated with our global financial and operating activities. We do not utilize derivative or other
financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes. We recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance
sheet on a gross basis, measure those instruments at fair value and recognize the change in fair value in earnings in the period of
change, unless the derivative qualifies as an effective hedge that offsets certain exposures. We have agreed with almost all of our
counterparties with whom we had entered into cross-currency swaps, interest rate swaps or foreign exchange contracts, to enter into
bilateral collateralization contracts under which we will receive or provide cash collateral, as the case may be, for the net position with
each of these counterparties. As of June 30, 2018, cash collateral positions consisted of $3.8 million recorded in accrued and other
current liabilities and $39.3 million recorded in prepaid expenses and other assets in the accompanying condensed consolidated
balance sheet. As of December 31, 2017, we had cash collateral positions consisting of $3.0 million recorded in accrued and other
current liabilities and $21.9 million recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets in the accompanying condensed
consolidated balance sheet.
In 2017, we entered into a foreign currency non-derivative hedging instrument that is designated and qualifies as net investment
hedge. The objective of the hedge is to protect part of the net investment in foreign operations against adverse changes in the exchange
rate between the Euro and the functional currency of the U.S. dollar. The non-derivative hedging instrument is the German private
corporate bond ("Schuldschein") which was issued in the total amount of $331.1 million as described in Note 9 "Debt." Of the $331.1
million, which is held in both U.S. dollars and Euros, €255.0 million is designated as the hedging instrument against a portion of our
Euro net investments in our foreign operations. The relative changes in both the hedged item and hedging instrument are calculated by
applying the change in spot rate between two assessment dates against the respective notional amount. The effective portion of the
hedge is recorded in the cumulative translation adjustment account within other accumulated comprehensive income (loss). Based on
the spot rate method, the unrealized loss recorded in equity was $11.2 million and $19.8 million as of June 30, 2018 and December 31,
17

Table of Contents
2017, respectively. Since we are using the debt as the hedging instrument, which is also remeasured based on the spot rate method,
there is no hedge ineffectiveness related to the net investment hedge as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we held derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges,
where the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) and
reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on the
derivative representing either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are
recognized in current earnings. In 2018 and in 2017, we did not record any hedge ineffectiveness related to any cash-flow hedges in
earnings. Based on their valuation as of June 30, 2018, we expect approximately $13.5 million of derivative losses included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss will be reclassified into income during the next 12 months. The cash flows derived from
derivatives are classified in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows in the same category as the condensed consolidated
balance sheet account of the underlying item.
As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we held derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting as fair value hedges.
For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a fair value hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the
derivative is reflected in earnings. This effect on earnings is offset by the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the
risk being hedged that is also recorded in earnings. In 2018 and in 2017, there was no ineffectiveness. The cash flows derived from
derivatives are classified in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows in the same category as the condensed consolidated
balance sheet account of the underlying item.
Interest Rate Derivatives
We use interest rate derivative contracts to align our portfolio of interest bearing assets and liabilities with our risk management
objectives. During 2015, we entered into five cross currency interest rate swaps through 2025 for a total notional amount of €180.0
million which qualify for hedge accounting as cash flow hedges. We determined that no ineffectiveness exists related to these swaps.
As of June 30, 2018, the €180.0 million notional swap amount had a fair value of $26.6 million recorded in other long-term liabilities
and a related interest receivable of $1.3 million which is recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets, respectively, in the
accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet. As of December 31, 2017, these swaps had a fair value of $28.9 million and
related interest receivable of $1.2 million which are recorded in other long-term liabilities and prepaid expenses and other current
assets, respectively, in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet.
We hold interest rate swaps which effectively fix the fair value of $200.0 million of our fixed rate private placement debt and qualify
for hedge accounting as fair value hedges. We determined that no ineffectiveness exists related to these swaps. As of June 30, 2018,
the $200.0 million notional swap amount had a fair value of $3.1 million and related interest payable of $0.1 million which are
recorded in other long-term liabilities and accrued and other current liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying condensed
consolidated balance sheet. As of December 31, 2017, these swaps had a fair value of $0.9 million and accrued and unpaid interest of
$0.3 million which are recorded in other long-term assets and prepaid expenses and other current assets, respectively, in the
accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet.
Call Options
We entered into Call Options in 2014 which, along with the sale of the Warrants, represent the Call Spread Overlay entered into in
connection with the 2019 and 2021 Cash Convertible Notes and which are more fully described in Note 9, “Debt.” We used $105.2
million of the proceeds from the issuance of the 2019 and 2021 Cash Convertible Notes to pay the premium for the Call Options, and
simultaneously received $68.9 million, (net of issuance costs) from the sale of the Warrants, for a net cash outlay of $36.3 million for
the Call Spread Overlay.
During 2017, we used $73.6 million of the proceeds from the issuance of the 2023 Cash Convertible Notes to pay the premium for the
Call Option, and simultaneously received $45.4 million from the sale of the Warrants, for a net cash outlay of $28.3 million for the
Call Spread Overlay. Issuance costs in connection with the Warrant and the Call Option were $0.3 million and $0.1 million
respectively.
In both transactions, the Call Options are intended to address the equity price risk inherent in the cash conversion feature of each
instrument by offsetting cash payments in excess of the principal amount due upon any conversion of the Cash Convertible Notes.
Aside from the initial payment of a premium of $105.2 million (2019 and 2021 Notes) and $73.6 million (2023 Notes) for the Call
Options, we will not be required to make any cash payments under the Call Options. We will, however, be entitled to receive under the
terms of the Call Options an amount of cash generally equal to the amount by which the market price per share of our common stock
exceeds the exercise price of the Call Options during the relevant valuation period. The exercise price under the Call Options is equal
to the conversion price of the Cash Convertible Notes.
The Call Options, for which our common stock are the underlying security, are a derivative asset that requires mark-to-market
accounting treatment due to the cash settlement features until the Call Options settle or expire. The Call Options are measured and
reported at fair value on a recurring basis, within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. For further discussion of the inputs used to
determine the fair value of the Call Options, refer to Note 8, “Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements.” The fair value of
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the Call Options at June 30, 2018 was approximately $430.8 million, of which $278.7 million and $152.1 million was recorded in
other long-term assets and prepaid expenses and other current assets, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, the fair value of the Call
Options was approximately $223.2 million which was recorded in other long-term assets in the accompanying condensed consolidated
balance sheet.
The Call Options do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Therefore, the change in fair value of these instruments is recognized
immediately in our condensed consolidated statements of income in other income (expense), net. For the three- and six-month periods
ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, the change in the fair value of the Call Options resulted in gains of $194.5 million and $207.6
million and $59.3 million and $38.3 million, respectively. Because the terms of the Call Options are substantially similar to those of
the Cash Convertible Notes' embedded cash conversion option, discussed below, we expect the effect on earnings from the two
derivative instruments to mostly offset each other.
Cash Convertible Notes Embedded Cash Conversion Option
The embedded cash conversion option within the Cash Convertible Notes is required to be separated from the Cash Convertible Notes
and accounted for separately as a derivative liability, with changes in fair value reported in our condensed consolidated statements of
income in other income (expense), net until the cash conversion option settles or expires. For further discussion of the Cash
Convertible Notes, refer to Note 9, “Debt.” The initial fair value liability of the embedded cash conversion option for the 2019 and
2021 Notes was $105.2 million and for the 2023 Notes was $74.5 million, which simultaneously reduced the carrying value of the
Cash Convertible Notes (effectively an original issuance discount). The embedded cash conversion option is measured and reported at
fair value on a recurring basis, within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. For further discussion of the inputs used to determine the fair
value of the embedded cash conversion option, refer to Note 8, “Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements.” The fair value
of the embedded cash conversion options at June 30, 2018 was approximately $434.0 million, of which $152.4 million and $281.6
million are recorded in other long-term liabilities and accrued and other current liabilities, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, the
fair value of the embedded cash conversion options was approximately $224.3 million which is recorded in other long-term liabilities
in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet. For the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018 and June 30,
2017, the change in the fair value of the embedded cash conversion option resulted in losses of $196.1 million and $209.7 million, and
$59.2 million and $37.6 million, respectively, recognized in our condensed consolidated statements of income in other income
(expense), net.
Foreign Currency Derivatives
As a globally active enterprise, we are subject to risks associated with fluctuations in foreign currencies in our ordinary operations.
This includes foreign currency-denominated receivables, payables, debt, and other balance sheet positions including intercompany
items. We manage balance sheet exposure on a group-wide basis using foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign exchange options
and cross-currency swaps.
Undesignated Derivative Instruments
We are party to various foreign exchange forward, option and swap arrangements which had, at June 30, 2018, an aggregate notional
value of $446.8 million and fair value of $1.3 million included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and $13.1 million included
in accrued and other current liabilities, which expire at various dates through September 2018. We were party to various foreign
exchange forward and swap arrangements which had, at December 31, 2017, an aggregate notional value of $587.3 million and fair
values of $7.5 million included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and $2.4 million included in accrued and other current
liabilities, which expired at various dates through December 2017. The transactions have been entered into to offset the effects from
short-term balance sheet exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. Changes in the fair value of these arrangements have been
recognized in other income (expense), net.
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Fair Values of Derivative Instruments
The following table summarizes the fair value amounts of derivative instruments reported in the condensed consolidated balance
sheets as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
Derivatives in Asset Positions Fair
value
(in thousands)

6/30/2018

Derivatives in Liability Positions
Fair value

12/31/2017

6/30/2018

12/31/2017

Derivative instruments designated as hedges
Interest rate contracts(1)
Total derivative instruments designated as hedges
Undesignated derivative instruments

$
$

1,317
1,317

$
$

2,409
2,409

Call spread overlay
Foreign exchange contracts
Total undesignated derivative instruments

$

430,794
1,278
432,072

$

223,164
7,480
230,644

$

_________________
(1)

The fair value amounts for the interest rate contracts include accrued interest.
Gains and Losses on Derivative and Non-derivative Instruments
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$

$
$

(29,770)
(29,770)

$ (433,990)
(13,148)
$ (447,138)

$
$

(28,942)
(28,942)

$ (224,286)
(2,424)
$ (226,710)
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The following tables summarize the locations and gains and losses on derivative and non-derivative instruments for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:

Gain/(loss)
recognized in
AOCI

Three months ended June 30, 2018 (in thousands)

Location of
gain / loss in
income statement

(Gain) loss
reclassified
from AOCI into
income

Gain (loss)
recognized in
income

Non-derivative instruments
Net investment hedge

$

16,902

Other income (expense), net

—

$

14,164

Other income (expense), net

$

$

—

Other income (expense), net

$

n/a
n/a

Other income (expense), net

n/a

Cash flow hedges
Interest rate contracts

(11,934)

n/a

Fair value hedges
Interest rate contracts

—

$

(994)

n/a
n/a

$

(1,617)
(16,519)
(18,136)

Undesignated derivative instruments
Call spread overlay
Foreign exchange contracts

Other income (expense), net

$
Gain/(loss)
recognized in
AOCI

Three months ended June 30, 2017 (in thousands)

Location of
gain / loss in
income statement

(Gain) loss
reclassified
from AOCI into
income

Gain (loss)
recognized in
income

Non-derivative instruments
Net investment hedge

$

(6,228)

—

Other income (expense), net

n/a

Cash flow hedges
Interest rate contracts

$

(13,851)

Other income (expense), net

$

12,978

n/a

—

Other income (expense), net

$

—

$

n/a
n/a

Other income (expense), net

n/a
n/a

$

Fair value hedges
Interest rate contracts

$

742

Undesignated derivative instruments
Call spread overlay
Foreign exchange contracts

Other income (expense), net

$
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138
744
882
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Gain/(loss)
recognized in
AOCI

Six months ended June 30, 2018 (in thousands)

Location of
(gain) loss in
income statement

(Gain) loss
reclassified
from AOCI into
income

Gain (loss)
recognized in
income

Non-derivative instruments
Net investment hedge

$

8,538

Other income (expense), net

$

2,369

Other income (expense), net

$

$

—

Other income (expense), net

$

—

n/a

Cash flow hedges
Interest rate contracts

(6,030)

n/a

Fair value hedges
Interest rate contracts

—

$

(3,991)

$

(2,072)
(14,042)
(16,114)

Undesignated derivative instruments
Call spread overlay
Foreign exchange contracts

n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a

Other income (expense), net
Other income (expense), net

$
Gain/(loss)
recognized in
AOCI

Six months ended June 30, 2017 (in thousands)

Location of
(gain) loss in
income statement

(Gain) loss
reclassified
from AOCI into
income

Gain (loss)
recognized in
income

Non-derivative instruments
Net investment hedge

$

(6,228)

Other income (expense), net

$

(13,841)

Other income (expense), net

Other income (expense), net

—

n/a

$

15,678

n/a

$

—

Cash flow hedges
Interest rate contracts
Fair value hedges
Interest rate contracts

$

—

$

110

$

671
6,534
7,205

Undesignated derivative instruments
Call spread overlay
Foreign exchange contracts

n/a
n/a

Other income (expense), net
Other income (expense), net

n/a
n/a

$

The amounts noted in the table above for accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) do not include any adjustment for the
impact of deferred income taxes.
8.

Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements

Assets and liabilities are measured at fair value according to a three-tier fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used in
measuring fair value as follows:
Level 1. Observable inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets;
Level 2. Inputs, other than the quoted price in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3. Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own
assumptions.
Our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis consist of marketable securities, as discussed in Note 5, and shortterm investments, derivative contracts used to hedge currency and interest rate risk, derivative financial instruments entered into in
connection with the Cash Convertible Notes discussed in Note 9, and contingent consideration accruals and are shown in the tables
below. There have been no transfers between levels during the periods ending June 30, 2018.
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In determining fair value for Level 2 instruments, we apply a market approach, using quoted active market prices relevant to the
particular instrument under valuation, giving consideration to the credit risk of both the respective counterparty to the contract and the
Company, unless there are collateral agreements for the respective transactions in place. To determine our credit risk, we estimated our
credit rating by benchmarking the price of outstanding debt to publicly-available comparable data from rated companies. Using the
estimated rating, our credit risk was quantified by reference to publicly-traded debt with a corresponding rating. The Level 2
derivative financial instruments include the Call Options asset and the embedded conversion option liability. See Note 9, "Debt", and
Note 7, "Derivatives and Hedging," for further information. The derivatives are not actively traded and are valued based on an option
pricing model that uses observable market data for inputs. Significant market data inputs used to determine fair values as of June 30,
2018 included our common stock price, the risk-free interest rate, and the implied volatility of our common stock. The Call Options
asset and the embedded cash conversion option liability were designed with the intent that changes in their fair values would
substantially offset, with limited net impact to our earnings. Therefore, the sensitivity of changes in the unobservable inputs to the
option pricing model for such instruments is substantially mitigated.
Our Level 3 instruments include contingent consideration liabilities. We value contingent consideration liabilities using unobservable
inputs, applying the income approach, such as the discounted cash flow technique, or the probability-weighted scenario method.
Contingent consideration arrangements obligate us to pay the sellers of an acquired entity if specified future events occur or conditions
are met such as the achievement of technological or revenue milestones. We use various key assumptions, such as the probability of
achievement of the milestones (0% to 100%) and the discount rate (8-10%), to represent the non-performing risk factors and time
value when applying the income approach. We regularly review the fair value of the contingent consideration and reflect any change
in the accrual in the condensed consolidated statements of income in the line items commensurate with the underlying nature of
milestone arrangements.
The following table presents our hierarchy for our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June
30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
As of June 30, 2018
(in thousands)

Assets:
Short-term investments
Marketable securities
Call option
Foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate contracts
Liabilities:
Foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate contracts
Cash conversion option
Contingent consideration

As of December 31, 2017

Level 1

Level 2

$ 1,089
2,717
—
—
—
$ 3,806

$ 224,685
—
430,794
1,278
1,317
$ 658,074

$

$ (13,148) $
— $ (13,148) $
(29,770)
(29,770)
—
(433,990)
(433,990)
—
(52,224)
(52,224)
—
$ (476,908) $ (52,224) $ (529,132) $

$

—
—
—
—
—

Level 3

$

$

Total

—
—
—
—
—
—

$ 225,774
2,717
430,794
1,278
1,317
$ 661,880

Level 1

Level 2

—
3,208
—
—
—
$ 3,208

$ 359,198
—
223,164
7,480
2,409
$ 592,251

$

—
—
—
—
—

Level 3

$

Total

—
—
—
—
—
—

$

—
(2,424) $
—
(28,942)
—
(224,286)
—
(11,539)
$(255,652) $(11,539)
$

$ 359,198
3,208
223,164
7,480
2,409
$ 595,459
$

(2,424)
(28,942)
(224,286)
(11,539)
$ (267,191)

The carrying values of cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities, which are classified
in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, approximate their fair values due to their short-term maturities.
For liabilities with Level 3 inputs, the following table summarizes the activity for the six months ended June 30, 2018:
Contingent
Consideration

(in thousands)

Beginning Balance at December 31, 2017
Additions
Payments
Ending balance at June 30, 2018

$

$

(11,539)
(52,216)
11,531
(52,224)

As of June 30, 2018, $27.0 million accrued for contingent consideration is included in accrued and other current liabilities and $25.2
million is included on other long-term liabilities in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet. For the six months ended
June 30, 2018, cash payments for contingent consideration totaled $11.5 million, of which $5.5 million relate to amounts originally
accrued at the acquisition date and $6.0 million relate to amounts in excess of amounts originally accrued and are included in other
financing activities and other operating activities, respectively, in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of cash flows.
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The table below presents the carrying values and the estimated fair values of financial instruments not presented in the tables above.
As of June 30, 2018
(in thousands)

Long-term debt including
current portion:
Cash convertible notes
Private placement
German private placement

Carrying
Amount

Level 1

$ 1,025,060
396,057
341,372
$ 1,762,489

$1,381,667
—
—
$1,381,667

As of December 31, 2017

Level 2

$

$

—
386,253
342,223
728,476

Level 3

$

$

—
—
—
—

Carrying
Amount

Level 1

$ 1,008,507
399,939
349,812
$ 1,758,258

$

—
—
—
—

$

Level 2

Level 3

$ 1,269,613
394,669
349,977
$ 2,014,259

$

$

—
—
—
—

The fair values of the financial instruments presented in the tables above were determined as follows:
Cash Convertible Notes: Fair value is based on an estimation using available over-the-counter market information on the Cash
Convertible Notes due in 2019, 2021 and 2023. During 2018, we determined that the quoted prices were from active markets and
accordingly moved the fair value from level 2 to level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
Private Placement: Fair value of the outstanding bonds is based on an estimation using the changes in the U.S. Treasury rates.
German Private Placement: Fair value is based on an estimation using changes in the euro swap rates.
The estimated fair values may not represent actual values of the financial instruments that could be realized as of the balance sheet
date or that will be realized in the future. There were no adjustments in the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018 and
2017 for nonfinancial assets or liabilities required to be measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.
9.

Debt

Our credit facilities available and undrawn at June 30, 2018 total €426.6 million (approximately $497.3 million). This includes a
€400.0 million syndicated multi-currency revolving credit facility expiring December 2021 of which no amounts were utilized at June
30, 2018 or at December 31, 2017, and four other lines of credit amounting to €26.6 million with no expiration date, none of which
were utilized as of June 30, 2018 or at December 31, 2017. The €400.0 million facility can be utilized in Euro, British pounds sterling,
Swiss franc or U.S. dollar and bears interest of 0.4% to 1.2% above three months EURIBOR, or LIBOR in relation to any loan not in
euro, and is offered with interest periods of one, two, three, or six months. The commitment fee is calculated based on 35% of the
applicable margin. The revolving facility agreement contains certain financial and non-financial covenants, including but not limited
to, restrictions on the encumbrance of assets and the maintenance of certain financial ratios. We were in compliance with these
covenants at June 30, 2018. The credit facilities are for general corporate purposes.
At June 30, 2018 or at December 31, 2017, long-term debt, net of debt issuance costs of $10.5 million and $12.4 million, respectively,
consists of the following:
(in thousands)

2018

$

0.375% Senior Unsecured Cash Convertible Notes due 2019
0.875% Senior Unsecured Cash Convertible Notes due 2021
0.500% Senior Unsecured Cash Convertible Notes due 2023
3.19% Series A Senior Notes due October 2019
3.75% Series B Senior Notes due October 2022
3.90% Series C Senior Notes due October 2024
Schuldschein Private Placement
Total long-term debt, including current portion
Less: current portion
Long-term portion

$
$

420,993
275,077
328,990
72,223
296,907
26,927
341,372
1,762,489
420,993
1,341,496

2017

$

$
$

414,843
270,762
322,902
72,742
300,276
26,921
349,812
1,758,258
—
1,758,258

The notes are all unsecured obligations that rank pari passu.
Cash Convertible Notes due 2019, 2021 and 2023
On March 19, 2014, we issued $730.0 million aggregate principal amount of Cash Convertible Senior Notes of which $430.0 million
is due in 2019 (2019 Notes) and $300.0 million is due in 2021 (2021 Notes). The aggregate net proceeds of the 2019 Notes and 2021
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Notes was $680.7 million, after payment of the net cost of the Call Spread Overlay described below and transaction costs.
Additionally, we used $372.5 million of the net proceeds to repay other debt.
On September 13, 2017, we issued $400.0 million aggregate principal amount of Cash Convertible Senior Notes which is due in 2023
(2023 Notes). The net proceeds of the 2023 Notes were $365.6 million, after payment of the net cost of the call Spread Overlay
described below and transaction costs paid through June 30, 2018.
We refer to the 2019 Notes, 2021 Notes and 2023 Notes collectively as the "Cash Convertible Notes." Interest on the Cash Convertible
Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears in March and September of each year, at rates of 0.375%, 0.875% and 0.500% per annum
for the 2019 Notes, 2021 Notes and 2023 Notes, respectively, commencing on September 19, 2014 for the 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes
and March 13, 2018 for the 2023 Notes. The 2019 Notes will mature on March 19, 2019, the 2021 Notes will mature on March 19,
2021 and the 2023 Notes will mature on September 13, 2023 unless repurchased or converted in accordance with their terms prior to
such date.
The Cash Convertible Notes are convertible solely into cash in whole, but not in part, at the option of noteholders in the following
circumstances: (a) from April 29, 2014 through September 18, 2018 for the 2019 Notes, and September 18, 2020 for the 2021 Notes
and from October 24, 2017 through March 13, 2023 for the 2023 Notes (Contingent Conversion Period), under any of the Contingent
Conversion Conditions and (b) at any time following the Contingent Conversion Period through the fifth business day immediately
preceding the applicable maturity date. For further information on the Contingent Conversion Conditions, refer to Note 15 "Lines of
Credit and Debt" of our Annual Report on Form 20-F. Upon conversion, noteholders will receive an amount in cash equal to the Cash
Settlement Amount, calculated as described below. The Cash Convertible Notes are not convertible into shares of our common stock
or any other securities.
The Contingent Conversion Conditions in the 2019 Notes, 2021 Notes and 2023 Notes have been analyzed under ASC 815,
Derivatives and Hedging, and based on our analysis, we determined that each of the embedded features are clearly and closely related
to the 2019 Notes, 2021 Notes and 2023 Notes (i.e., host contract). As a result, pursuant to the accounting provisions of ASC 815,
Derivatives and Hedging, these features are not required to be bifurcated as separate instruments. As of June 30, 2018, no contingent
conversion was triggered.
For the 2023 Notes, the initial conversion rate is 4,829.7279 shares of our common stock per $200,000 principal amount (reflecting an
initial conversion price of approximately $41.4102 per share of common stock). As adjusted by the synthetic share repurchase
discussed in Note 12, the conversion rate for the 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes is 7,063.1647 shares of our common stock per $200,000
principal amount (reflecting an adjusted conversion price of approximately $28.32 per share of common stock). Upon conversion,
holders are entitled to a cash payment (Cash Settlement Amount) equal to the average of the conversion rate multiplied by the daily
volume-weighted average trading price for our common stock over a 50-day period. The conversion rate is subject to adjustment in
certain instances but will not be adjusted for any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, following the occurrence of certain
corporate events that may occur prior to the applicable maturity date, we may be required to pay a cash make-whole premium by
increasing the conversion rate for any holder who elects to convert Cash Convertible Notes in connection with the occurrence of such
a corporate event, but in no event will the Conversion Ratio exceed 6,728.6463 per $200,000 principal amount of Notes.
We may redeem the 2019 Notes, 2021 Notes or 2023 Notes in their entirety at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
applicable Cash Convertible Notes plus accrued interest at any time when 20% or less of the aggregate principal amount of the
applicable Cash Convertible Notes originally issued remain outstanding.
Because the Cash Convertible Notes contain an embedded cash conversion option, we have determined that the embedded cash
conversion option is a derivative financial instrument, which is required to be separated from the Cash Convertible Notes and
accounted for separately as a derivative liability, with changes in fair value reported in our consolidated statements of operations until
the cash conversion option transaction settles or expires. The initial fair value liability of the embedded cash conversion option for the
2019 Notes and 2021 Notes was $105.2 million and for the 2023 Notes was $74.5 million, which simultaneously reduced the carrying
value of the Cash Convertible Notes (effectively an original issuance discount). For further discussion of the derivative financial
instruments relating to the Cash Convertible Notes, refer to Note 7, “Derivatives and Hedging.”
As noted above, the reduced carrying value on the Cash Convertible Notes resulted in a debt discount that is amortized to the principal
amount through the recognition of non-cash interest expense using the effective interest method over the expected life of the debt,
which is five, seven and six years for the 2019 Notes, 2021 Notes and 2023 Notes, respectively. This resulted in our recognition of
interest expense on the Cash Convertible Notes at an effective rate approximating what we would have incurred had nonconvertible
debt with otherwise similar terms been issued. The effective interest rate of the 2019 Notes, 2021 Notes and 2023 Notes is 2.937%,
3.809% and 3.997%, respectively, which is imputed based on the amortization of the fair value of the embedded cash conversion
option over the remaining term of the Cash Convertible Notes. As of June 30, 2018, we expect the 2019 Notes, 2021 Notes and 2023
Notes to be outstanding until their respective maturity dates.
In connection with the issuance of the 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes, we incurred approximately $13.1 million in transaction costs. We
incurred approximately $6.2 million in transaction costs for the 2023 Notes. Such costs have been allocated to the Cash Convertible
Notes and deferred as a long-term asset which are being amortized to interest expense using the effective interest method.
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Interest expense related to the Cash Convertible Notes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was comprised of
the following:
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2018

$

Coupon interest
Amortization of original issuance discount
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Total interest expense related to the Cash Convertible Notes

2017

1,560
7,478
835
9,873

$

$

1,059
4,504
583
6,146

$

Six months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2018

$

Coupon interest
Amortization of original issuance discount
Amortization of debt issuance costs

$

Total interest expense related to the Cash Convertible Notes

2017

3,119

$

2,119

14,889

8,970

1,664

1,162

19,672

$

12,251

Cash Convertible Notes Call Spread Overlay
Concurrent with the issuance of the Cash Convertible Notes, we entered into privately negotiated hedge transactions (Call Options)
with, and issued warrants to purchase shares of our common stock (Warrants) to, certain financial institutions. We refer to the Call
Options and Warrants collectively as the “Call Spread Overlay”. The Call Options are intended to offset any cash payments payable by
us in excess of the principal amount due upon any conversion of the Cash Convertible Notes. During 2014, we used $105.2 million of
the proceeds from the issuance of the 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes to pay for the Call Options, and simultaneously received $69.4
million from the sale of the Warrants, for a net cash outlay of $35.8 million for the Call Spread Overlay.
During 2017, we used $73.6 million of the proceeds from the issuance of the 2023 Notes to pay for the premium for the Call Option,
and simultaneously received $45.4 million from the sale of Warrants, for a net cash outlay of $28.3 million for the Call Spread
Overlay. Issuance costs in connection with the Warrant and the Call Option were $0.3 million and $0.1 million respectively.
The Call Options are derivative financial instruments and are discussed further in Note 7, “Derivatives and Hedging.” The Warrants
are equity instruments and are further discussed in Note 12, “Equity.”
Aside from the initial payment of a premium of $105.2 million (relating to the 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes) and $73.6 million (relating
to the 2023 Notes) for the Call Option, we will not be required to make any cash payments under the Call Options, and will be entitled
to receive an amount of cash, generally equal to the amount by which the market price per share of our common stock exceeds the
exercise price of the Call Options during the relevant valuation period. The exercise price under the Call Options is initially equal to
the conversion price of the Cash Convertible Notes.
The Warrants issued in connection with the 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes cover an aggregate of 25.8 million shares of our common
stock (subject to anti-dilution adjustments under certain circumstances) and following the completion of the synthetic share
repurchase, have an exercise price of $32.0558 per share, subject to customary adjustments. These Warrants expire as follows:
Warrants to purchase 15.2 million shares expire over a period of 50 trading days beginning on December 27, 2018 and Warrants to
purchase 10.6 million shares expire over a period of 50 trading days beginning on December 29, 2020.
Concurrent with the 2023 Notes, we issued Warrants which cover 9.7 million shares of our common stock (subject to anti-dilution
adjustments under certain circumstances) and have an initial exercise price of $50.9664 per share, subject to customary adjustments.
The Warrants expire over a period of 50 trading days beginning on June 26, 2023.
The Warrants that were issued with our Cash Convertible Notes discussed above could have a dilutive effect to the extent that the price
of our common stock exceeds the applicable strike price of the Warrants. For each Warrant that is exercised, we will deliver to the
holder a number of shares of our common stock equal to the amount by which the settlement price exceeds the exercise price, divided
by the settlement price, plus cash in lieu of any fractional shares. We will not receive any additional proceeds if the Warrants are
exercised. The Warrants are European-style (exercisable only upon expiration).
Private Placement
In October 2012, we completed a private placement through the issuance of new senior unsecured notes at a total amount of $400
million with a weighted average interest rate of 3.66% (settled on October 16, 2012). The notes were issued in three series: (1) $73
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million 7-year term due in 2019 (3.19%); (2) $300 million 10-year term due in 2022 (3.75%); and (3) $27 million 12-year term due in
2024 (3.90%). We paid $2.1 million in debt issuance costs which are being amortized through interest expense over the lifetime of the
notes. The note purchase agreement contains certain financial and non-financial covenants, including but not limited to, restrictions on
priority indebtedness and the maintenance of certain financial ratios. We were in compliance with these covenants at June 30, 2018.
During 2014, we entered into interest rate swaps, which effectively fixed the fair value of $200.0 million of this debt and qualify for
hedge accounting as fair value hedges as described in Note 7 "Derivatives and Hedging."
German Private Placement (Schuldschein)
In 2017, we issued a German private placement bond ("Schuldschein") in several tranches totaling $331.1 million due in various
periods through 2027. The Schuldschein consists of U.S. dollar and Euro denominated tranches. The Euro tranches are designated as a
foreign currency non-derivative hedging instrument that qualifies as a net investment hedge as described in Note 7 "Derivatives and
Hedging." We paid $1.2 million in debt issuance costs which are being amortized through interest expense over the lifetime of the
notes. A summary of the tranches as of June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Currency

Notional Amount Interest Rate

EUR
EUR

€11.5 million Fixed 0.4%
€23.0 million Floating EURIBOR + 0.4%

EUR
EUR
USD
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

€21.5 million
€64.5 million
$45.0 million
€25.0 million
€64.0 million
€31.0 million
€14.5 million

Carrying Value as of

Carrying Value as of

June 30, 2018

December 31, 2017

(in thousands)

(in thousands)

Maturity

March 2021
March 2021

Fixed 0.68%
Floating EURIBOR + 0.5%
Floating LIBOR + 1.2%
Floating EURIBOR + 0.5%
Fixed 1.09%
Floating EURIBOR + 0.7%
Fixed 1.61%

$

October 2022
October 2022
October 2022
October 2022
June 2024
June 2024
June 2027
$

13,376
26,753
25,001
75,004
44,876
29,052
74,411
36,043
16,856
341,372

$

$

13,660
27,320
25,535
76,605
44,862
31,792
76,005
36,815
17,218
349,812

10. Income Taxes
The quarterly provision for income taxes is based upon the estimated annual effective tax rates for the year, applied to the current
period ordinary income before tax plus the tax effect of any discrete items. Our operating subsidiaries are exposed to effective tax rates
ranging from zero to more than 34%. Fluctuations in the distribution of pre-tax (loss) income among our operating subsidiaries can
lead to fluctuations of the effective tax rate in the consolidated financial statements. In the second quarters of 2018 and 2017, our
effective tax rates were 19.9% and (12.6)%, respectively. In the six-month periods ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, the
effective tax rates were 18.8% and (9.4)% respectively. Additionally, in 2018 and 2017, tax expense on foreign operations was
favorably impacted by lower income tax rates and partial tax exemptions on foreign income primarily derived from operations in
Germany, Singapore, Luxembourg, Ireland and Switzerland. These foreign tax benefits are due to a combination of favorable tax laws,
rules, rulings, and exemptions in these jurisdictions. In particular, we have pre-tax income in Germany which is statutorily exempt
from trade tax on intercompany foreign royalty income. Further, we have intercompany financing arrangements through Luxembourg
and Ireland in which the intercompany income is partially exempt.
We assess uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740 (ASC 740-10 Accounting for Uncertainties in Tax). At June 30, 2018,
our net unrecognized tax benefits totaled approximately $48.4 million which, if recognized, would favorably impact our effective tax
rate in the periods in which they are recognized. It is possible that approximately $12.7 million of the unrecognized tax benefits may
be released during the next 12 months due to lapse of statutes of limitations or settlements with tax authorities. We cannot reasonably
estimate the range of the potential outcomes of these matters.
We conduct business globally and, as a result, file numerous consolidated and separate income tax returns in The Netherlands,
Germany, Switzerland and the U.S. federal jurisdiction, as well as in various other state and foreign jurisdictions. In the normal course
of business, we are subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world. Our subsidiaries are generally no longer subject
to income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2013. During the first quarter of 2016, the U.S. tax authority (Internal
Revenue Service) concluded its federal audit of our U.S. tax returns for 2011 and 2012 without any adjustments. In February 2016,
German tax authorities began the audit of the German tax returns for the 2010 through 2013 tax years. This audit is currently in
process and we expect to close the audit later in 2018.
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As of June 30, 2018, residual Netherlands income taxes have not been provided on the undistributed earnings of the majority of our
foreign subsidiaries as these earnings are considered to be either permanently reinvested or can be repatriated tax free under the Dutch
participation exemption.
In December 2017, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118, Income Tax Accounting Implications of the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act ("SAB 118"), which allows us to record provisional amounts during a measurement period not to extend beyond one year of
the enactment date. For those specific income tax effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("2017 Tax Act") for which the accounting
under ASC Topic 740 is incomplete, a reasonable estimate was determined. We have recognized the provisional tax impacts related to
the interest expense deduction limitation and the revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities and included these amounts in our
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. The ultimate impact may differ from these provisional
amounts due to additional analysis, changes in interpretations and assumptions that we have made, additional regulatory guidance that
may be issued, and actions we may take because of the 2017 Tax Act. We did not identify items for which the income tax effects of the
2017 Tax Act have not been completed and a reasonable estimate could not be determined as of December 31, 2017. We expect to
complete our analysis within the measurement period in accordance with SAB118.
11. Inventories
The components of inventories consist of the following as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
June 30,
2018

(in thousands)

Raw materials
Work in process
Finished goods
Total inventories, net

$

$

25,532
35,902
96,801
158,235

December 31,
2017

$

$

23,717
33,153
99,057
155,927

12. Equity
Issuance of Warrants
In March 2014, in connection with the issuance of our 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes, we issued Warrants (as described in Note 9) for
approximately 25.8 million shares of our common stock (subject to antidilution adjustments under certain circumstances) with an
exercise price of $32.085 per share, subject to customary adjustments. Following the synthetic share repurchase discussed below, the
adjusted exercise price is $32.056. The proceeds, net of issuance costs, from the sale of these Warrants of approximately $68.9 million
are included as additional paid in capital in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets. These Warrants expire as
follows: Warrants to purchase 15.2 million shares expire over a period of 50 trading days beginning on December 27, 2018 and
Warrants to purchase 10.6 million shares expire over a period of 50 trading days beginning on December 29, 2020.
In September 2017, concurrent with the issuance of our 2023 Notes, we issued Warrants (as described in Note 9) for approximately 9.7
million shares of our common stock (subject to anti-dilution adjustments under certain circumstances) with an exercise price of
$50.9664 per share, subject to customary adjustments. The proceeds from the sale of the Warrants, net of issuance costs, of
approximately $45.3 million are included as additional paid in capital in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.
The Warrants expire over a period of 50 trading days beginning on June 26, 2023.
These Warrants are exercisable only upon expiration. For each Warrant that is exercised, we will deliver to the holder a number of
shares of our common stock equal to the amount by which the settlement price exceeds the exercise price, divided by the settlement
price, plus cash in lieu of any fractional shares. These Warrants could separately have a dilutive effect on shares of our common stock
to the extent that the market value per share of our common stock exceeds the applicable exercise price of the Warrants (as measured
under the terms of the Warrants).
Share Repurchase Programs
On April 27, 2016, we announced the launch of our fourth $100 million share repurchase program which was completed by the end of
2017. During the third quarter of 2017, 1.9 million QIAGEN shares were repurchased for $61.0 million (including transaction costs).
On January 31, 2018, we announced our fifth share repurchase program of up to $200 million of our common shares. During the
second quarter of 2018, we repurchased 0.8 million QIAGEN shares for $29.6 million (including transaction costs) of which $20.8
million was paid as of June 30, 2018.
The cost of repurchased shares is included in treasury stock and reported as a reduction in total equity when a repurchase occurs.
Repurchased shares will be held in treasury in order to satisfy various obligations, which include exchangeable debt instruments,
warrants and employee share-based remuneration plans.
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Synthetic Share Repurchase Program
In August 2016, we announced our plan to return approximately $250.0 million to shareholders through a synthetic share repurchase
program that combines a direct capital repayment with a reverse stock split. The synthetic share repurchase was implemented through
a series of amendments to our Articles of Association which were approved by our shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting
(EGM) held on October 26, 2016. The first amendment involved an increase in share capital by an increase in the nominal value per
common share from EUR 0.01 to EUR 1.04 and a corresponding reduction in additional paid in capital. The second amendment
involved a reduction in stock whereby 27 existing common shares with a nominal value of EUR 1.04 each were consolidated into 26
new common shares with a nominal value of EUR 1.08 each. The third amendment was a reduction of the nominal value per common
share from EUR 1.08 to EUR 0.01. As a result of these amendments, which in substance constitute a synthetic share buyback, $243.9
million was repaid to our shareholders and the outstanding number of common shares was reduced by 8.9 million, or 3.7%. The
capital repayment program was completed in January 2017. Expenses incurred related to the capital repayment and share
consolidation amounted to $0.5 million and were charged to equity.
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The following table is a summary of the components of accumulated other comprehensive loss as of June 30, 2018 and December 31,
2017:
June 30,
2018

(in thousands)

Net unrealized loss on hedging contracts, net of tax
Net unrealized loss on marketable securities, net of tax
Net unrealized loss on pension, net of tax
Foreign currency effects from intercompany long-term investment transactions, net of tax of $8.6
million in 2018 and $7.9 million 2017
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

$

(24,695)

December 31,
2017

$

—
(878)

(30,487)
(942)
(878)

(19,225)
(234,846)
$ (279,644)

(16,144)
(172,308)
$ (220,759)

13. Revenue
Accounting Policies
We adopted Topic 606 Revenue from Contracts with Customers with a date of initial application of January 1, 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information has not been adjusted and continues to be reported under ASC Topic 605 Revenue Recognition. As a
result, we changed our accounting policy for revenue recognition as detailed below.
We applied Topic 606 using the modified retrospective method by recognizing the effect of initially applying Topic 606 as an $1.3
million adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at January 1, 2018 for all contracts not completed at January 1,
2018. The following table presents the impact from the adoption of Topic 606 on our condensed consolidated balance sheet:
Balance at
December 31, 2017

(in thousands)

Accounts receivable
Accrued and other current liabilities
Long-term deferred income tax assets
Retained earnings

$
$
$
$

329,138
244,114
39,353
1,247,945

Topic 606
Adjustments

$
$
$
$

160
765
701
(1,306)

Balance at
January 1, 2018

$
$
$
$

329,298
244,879
40,054
1,246,639

The adoption of Topic 606 resulted in higher revenue of $5.4 million and $2.3 million for the three and six month periods ended
June 30, 2018, respectively, following the change in the timing of the recognition of milestone payments. The following tables
summarizes the impacted line items from our condensed consolidated statement of income for the three and six month periods
ended June 30, 2018:
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(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Three months ended
June 30, 2018 under
previous standard

Net sales
Income taxes
Net income
Basic and diluted earnings per common share

$
$
$
$

371,766
8,063
32,465
0.14

$
$
$
$

Six months ended
June 30, 2018 under
previous standard

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net sales
Income taxes
Net income
Basic and diluted earnings per common share

$
$
$
$

718,480
15,561
67,256
0.29

June 30, 2018
As Reported

Effect of Topic 606

5,430
1,080
4,350
0.02

$
$
$
$

June 30, 2018
As Reported

Effect of Topic 606

$
$
$
$

2,284
429
1,855
0.01

377,196
9,143
36,815
0.16

$
$
$
$

720,764
15,990
69,111
0.30

The impact from the adoption of Topic 606 on our condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2018 and condensed
consolidated statement of cash flow for the six months ended June 30, 2018 was not material.
Nature of Goods and Services
Our revenues are reported net of sales and value added taxes and accruals for estimated rebates and returns and are derived
primarily from the sale of consumable and instrumentation products, and to a much lesser extent, from the sale of services,
intellectual property and technology. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services. We enter into contracts
that can include various combinations of products and services, which are generally distinct and accounted for as separate
performance obligations. The transaction price is allocated to performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices.
We offer warranties on our products. Certain of our warranties are assurance-type in nature and do not cover anything beyond
ensuring that the product is functioning as intended. Based on the guidance in Topic 606, assurance-type warranties do not
represent separate performance obligations. The Company also sells separately-priced service contracts which qualify as servicetype warranties and represent separate performance obligations.
We sell our products and services both directly to customers and through distributors generally under agreements with payment
terms typically less than 90 days and in most cases not exceeding one year and therefore contracts do not contain a significant
financing component.
Consumable and Related Revenue
Consumable Products: In the last three years, revenue from consumable product sales has accounted for approximately 79%-80%
of our net sales and revenue is recognized when performance obligations under the terms of a contract with a customer are
satisfied. The majority of our contracts have a single performance obligation to transfer a product or multiple performance
obligations to transfer multiple products concurrently. Accordingly, we recognize revenue when control of the products has
transferred to the customer, which is generally at the time of shipment of products as this is when title and risk of loss have been
transferred. In addition, invoicing typically occurs at this time so this is when we have a present right to payment. Revenue is
measured as the amount of consideration we expect to receive in exchange for transferring products and is generally based upon a
negotiated, formula, list or fixed price.
Related Revenue: Revenues from related products include software-as-a-service (SaaS), licenses, intellectual property and patent
sales, royalties and milestone payments and over the last three years has accounted for approximately 7%-8% of our net sales.
SaaS arrangements: Revenue from SaaS arrangements, which allow customers to use hosted software over the contract period
without taking possession of the software, is recognized over the duration of the agreement unless the terms of the agreement
indicate that revenue should be recognized in a different pattern, for example based on usage.
Licenses: Licenses for on-site software, which allow customers to use the software as it exists when made available, are sold as
perpetual licenses or subscriptions. Revenue from on-site licenses are recognized upfront at the point in time at the later of when
the software is made available to the customer and the beginning of the license term. When a portion of the transaction price is
allocated to a performance obligation to provide support and/or updates, revenue is recognized as the updates/support are provided,
generally over the life of the license. Fees from research collaborations include payments for technology transfer and access rights.
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Royalties from licensees of intellectual property are based on sales of licensed products and revenues are recognized at the later of
(i) when the related sales occur, or (ii) when the performance obligation to which some or all of the royalty has been allocated has
been satisfied (or partially satisfied).
Milestone Payments: At the inception of each companion diagnostic co-development arrangement that includes development
milestone payments, which represent variable consideration, we evaluate whether the milestones are probable of being reached and
estimate the amount to be included in the transaction price using the most likely amount method. If it is probable that a significant
revenue reversal would not occur, the associated milestone value is included in the transaction price. Milestone payments that are
not within our control, such as milestones which are achieved through regulatory approvals, are considered to be constrained and
excluded from the transaction price until those approvals are received. Revenue is recognized following the input method as this is
considered to best depict the timing of the transfer of control. This involves measuring actual hours incurred to date as a proportion
of the total budgeted hours of the project. At the end of each subsequent reporting period, the proportion of completion is trued-up.
We also re-evaluate the probability of achievement of development milestones and any related constraint on a periodic basis, and if
necessary, adjust our estimate of the overall transaction price. Any such adjustments are recorded on a cumulative catch-up basis,
which would affect revenues and earnings in the period of adjustment.
Instruments
Revenue from instrumentation includes the instrumentation equipment, installation, training and other instrumentation services,
such as extended warranty services or product maintenance contracts and over the last three years has accounted for approximately
12%-13% of net sales. Revenue from instrumentation equipment is recognized when the customer obtains control of the instrument
which is predominantly at the time of delivery or when title has transferred to the customer. Service revenue is recognized over the
term of the service period as the customers benefit from the service throughout the service period. Revenue related to services
performed on a time-and-materials basis is recognized when performed
Contract Estimates
The majority of our revenue is derived from contracts (i) with an original expected length of one year or less and (ii) contracts for
which we recognize revenue at the amount in which we have the right to invoice as product is delivered. We have elected the
practical expedient not to disclose the value of remaining performance obligations associated with these types of contracts.
However, we have certain companion diagnostic co-development contracts to provide research and development activities in
which our performance obligations extend over multiple years. As of June 30, 2018, we had $46.8 million of remaining
performance obligations for which the transaction price is not constrained related to these contracts of which we expect to
recognize approximately 50% over the next 12 months and the remainder thereafter.
Revenue expected to be recognized in any future year related to remaining performance obligations, excluding revenue pertaining
to contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or less, contracts where revenue is recognized as invoiced and
contracts with variable consideration related to undelivered performance obligations, is not material.
Contract Balances
The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections can result in billed accounts receivable, unbilled receivables
(contract assets), and customer advances and deposits (contract liabilities) in the condensed consolidated balance sheet.
We do not have any material contract assets (unbilled receivables) as of June 30, 2018 or January 1, 2018.
Contract liabilities primarily relate to advances or deposits received from customers before revenue is recognized and is primarily
related to instrument service and software subscription revenue. These amounts are recorded as deferred revenue and totaled $44.5
million and $49.4 million at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, and are included in accrued and other current
liabilities. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, we satisfied the associated performance obligations and
recognized revenue of $17.6 million and $32.2 million related to advance customer payments previously received.
Practical Expedients and Accounting Policy Elections
We exclude from net sales any value add, sales and other taxes which we collect concurrent with revenue-producing activities. If
we perform shipping and handling activities after the transfer of control to the customer (e.g., when control transfers prior to
delivery), they are considered as fulfillment activities, and accordingly, the costs are accrued when the related revenue is
recognized. As such, shipping and handling fees billed to customers in a sales transaction are recorded in net sales and shipping
and handling costs incurred are recorded in sales and marketing expenses. We recognize the incremental costs of obtaining
contracts (commissions) as an expense when incurred for contracts that have a duration of one year or less. There were no deferred
contract costs recorded at June 30, 2018. We apply the practical expedient to not disclose information about remaining
performance obligations that have original expected duration of one year or less.
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Disaggregation of Revenue
We disaggregate our revenue based on product categories and customer class as shown in the table below:
Three Months Ended June 30, 2018
(in thousands)

Molecular Diagnostics
Applied Testing
Pharma
Academia
Total

Consumables
and related

$

$

167,265
26,119
66,527
73,272
333,183

Instruments

$

$

Three Months Ended June 30, 2017
Consumables
and related

Total

19,706
6,498
7,936
9,873
44,013

$

186,971
32,617
74,463
83,145
377,196

$

$

$

151,511
25,997
62,552
68,783
308,843

Six Months Ended June 30, 2018
(in thousands)

Molecular Diagnostics
Applied Testing
Pharma
Academia
Total

Consumables
and related

$

$

312,817
51,231
130,207
145,553
639,808

Instruments

$

$

$

$

$

Consumables
and related

348,317
63,138
145,107
164,202
720,764

$

$

277,121
49,994
119,621
135,210
581,946

Americas
Europe, Middle East and Africa
Asia Pacific and Rest of World
Total

2018

$

$

32

Total

$

168,264
32,979
70,411
77,336
348,990

$

Instruments

$

$

Three Months Ended June 30,
(in thousands)

16,753
6,982
7,859
8,553
40,147

Six Months Ended June 30, 2017

Total

35,500
11,907
14,900
18,649
80,956

Instruments

$

179,626
120,244
77,326
377,196

$

162,967
111,918
74,105
348,990

Total

$

$

309,908
61,977
133,704
151,107
656,696

Six Months Ended June 30,

2017

$

32,787
11,983
14,083
15,897
74,750

2018

$

$

338,671
236,156
145,937
720,764

2017

$

$

305,268
212,456
138,972
656,696

14. Earnings per Common Share
We present basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that would occur if all “in the
money” securities to issue common shares were exercised. The following table for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30,
2018 and 2017 summarizes the information used to compute earnings per common share:
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands, except per share data)

2018

Net income

$

Weighted average number of common shares used to compute basic net income per common share
Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock units
Dilutive effect of outstanding warrants
Weighted average number of common shares used to compute diluted net income per common share
Outstanding options and awards having no dilutive effect, not included in above calculation
Outstanding warrants having no dilutive effect, not included in above calculation
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share

2017

36,815

$

227,273
4,548
1,963
233,784
173
33,454
$
$

0.16
0.16

13,951
227,963
4,718
—
232,681
188
25,800

$
$

0.06
0.06

Six months ended
June 30,
(in thousands, except per share data)

2018

$

Net income

69,111

$

227,096
4,669
1,393
233,158
222
34,024

Weighted average number of common shares used to compute basic net income per common share
Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock units
Dilutive effect of outstanding warrants
Weighted average number of common shares used to compute diluted net income per common share
Outstanding options and awards having no dilutive effect, not included in above calculation
Outstanding warrants having no dilutive effect, not included in above calculation
$
$

Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share

2017

0.30
0.30

31,602
228,968
4,813
—
233,781
94
25,800

$
$

0.14
0.14

15. Commitments and Contingencies
Contingent Consideration Commitments
Pursuant to the purchase agreements for certain acquisitions and other contractual arrangements, we could be required to make
additional contingent cash payments totaling up to $69.3 million based on the achievement of certain revenue and operating results
milestones as follows: $5.0 million in the remainder of 2018, $23.7 million in 2019, $16.8 million in 2020, $5.9 million in 2021, $5.9
million in 2023 and $5.0 million and $7.0 million payable in any 12-month period from now through 2028 and 2029, respectively,
based on the achievement of certain revenue or other milestones, regulatory approvals or clearances. Of the $69.3 million total
contingent obligation as discussed further in Note 8, we have assessed the fair value at June 30, 2018 to be $52.2 million, of which
$27.0 million is included in accrued and other current liabilities and $25.2 million is included in other long-term liabilities in the
accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet.
Contingencies
In the ordinary course of business, we provide a warranty to customers that our products are free of defects and will conform to
published specifications. Generally, the applicable product warranty period is one year from the date of delivery of the product to the
customer or of site acceptance, if required. Additionally, we typically provide limited warranties with respect to our services. From
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time to time, we also make other warranties to customers, including warranties that our products are manufactured in accordance with
applicable laws and not in violation of third-party rights. We provide for estimated warranty costs at the time of the product sale. We
believe our warranty reserves of $3.0 million and 3.1 million as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, appropriately reflect the
estimated cost of such warranty obligations.
Litigation
From time to time, we may be party to legal proceedings incidental to our business. As of June 30, 2018, certain claims, suits or legal
proceedings arising out of the normal course of business have been filed or were pending against QIAGEN or our subsidiaries. These
matters have arisen in the ordinary course and conduct of business, as well as through acquisition. Although it is not possible to predict
the outcome of such litigation, we assess the degree of probability and evaluate the reasonably possible losses that we could incur as a
result of these matters. We accrue for any estimated loss when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of
probable loss can be estimated. Litigation accruals totaled $17.0 million which were recorded to general, administrative, restructuring,
integration and other expense, net in the three months ended June 30, 2018. Although it is possible that we may incur a loss in excess
of the amount accrued, we are currently unable to estimate the amount of such losses or a range of possible losses. Based on the facts
known to QIAGEN and after consultation with legal counsel, management believes that such litigation will not have a material
adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations above the amounts accrued. However, the outcome of these matters is
ultimately uncertain, thus any settlements or judgments against us in excess of management's expectations could have a material
adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
16. Share-Based Compensation
Stock Units
Stock units represent rights to receive our common shares at a future date and include restricted stock units which are subject to timebased vesting only and performance stock units which include performance conditions in addition to time-based vesting. During the
three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018, we granted 0.5 million and 1.3 million stock awards compared to 1.2 million and
1.9 million stock awards for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2017.
At June 30, 2018, there was $85.6 million remaining in unrecognized compensation expense, less estimated forfeitures, related to
these awards which will be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.53 years.
Share-Based Compensation Expense
Total share-based compensation expense for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 is comprised of the
following:
Three months ended
June 30,
Compensation Expense (in thousands)

2018

Cost of sales
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative, restructuring, integration and other, net
Share-based compensation expense before taxes
Less: income tax benefit
Net share-based compensation expense
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$

$

761
1,557
2,033
4,813
9,164
1,967
7,197

2017

$

$

729
1,668
2,736
5,019
10,152
2,422
7,730

Six months ended
June 30,
Compensation Expense (in thousands)

2018

Cost of sales
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative, restructuring, integration and other, net
Share-based compensation expense before taxes
Less: income tax benefit
Net share-based compensation expense

$

$

1,548
2,916
4,569
10,237
19,270
4,107
15,163

2017

$

$

1,364
2,449
4,770
10,475
19,058
4,382
14,676

No compensation cost was capitalized in inventory at June 30, 2018 or June 30, 2017 as the amounts were not material.
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
This section contains a number of forward-looking statements. These statements are based on current management expectations, and
actual results may differ materially. Among the factors that could cause actual results to differ from management’s expectations are
those described in “Risk Factors” and “Forward-looking and Cautionary Statements” below.
Forward-looking and Cautionary Statements
This report contains forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties. These statements can be identified by the
use of forward-looking terminology, such as “believe,” “hope,” “plan,” “intend,” “seek,” “may,” “will,” “could,” “should,” “would,”
“expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue” or other similar words. Such statements are based on management’s current
expectations and are subject to a number of factors and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
described in the forward-looking statements. We caution investors that there can be no assurance that actual results or business
conditions will not differ materially from those projected or suggested in such forward-looking statements as a result of various
factors, including, but not limited to, the following: risks associated with our expansion of operations, including the acquisition of new
businesses; variability in our operating results from quarter to quarter; management of growth, international operations, and
dependence on key personnel; intense competition; technological change; our ability to develop and protect proprietary products and
technologies and to enter into and maintain collaborative commercial relationships; our future capital requirements; general economic
conditions and capital market fluctuations; and uncertainties as to the extent of future government regulation of our business. As a
result, our future success involves a high degree of risk. For further information, refer to the more specific risks and uncertainties
discussed in Part 1, Item 3 "Key Information" of our Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017 and under
the heading "Risk Factors" below.
Results of Operations
Overview
We are a leading global provider of Sample to Insight solutions to transform biological materials into valuable molecular insights.
QIAGEN sample technologies isolate and process DNA, RNA and proteins from any biological sample, such as blood or tissue. Assay
technologies make these biomolecules visible and ready for analysis, such as identifying the DNA of a virus or a mutation of a gene.
Bioinformatics solutions integrate software and cloud-based resources to interpret increasing volumes of biological data and report
relevant, actionable insights. Our automation solutions tie these together in seamless and cost-effective molecular testing workflows.
We sell our products - consumables, automated instrumentation systems using those technologies, and bioinformatics to analyze and
interpret the data - to four major customer classes:
•
Molecular Diagnostics - healthcare providers engaged in many aspects of patient care including Prevention, Profiling of
diseases, Personalized Healthcare and Point of Need testing
•
Applied Testing - government or industry customers using molecular technologies in fields such as forensics, veterinary
diagnostics and food safety testing
•
Pharma - pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies using molecular testing to support drug discovery, translational
medicine and clinical development efforts
•
Academia - researchers exploring the secrets of life such as the mechanisms and pathways of diseases, and in some cases
translating that research into drug targets or commercial applications
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We market products in more than 130 countries, mainly through subsidiaries in markets we believe have the greatest sales potential in
Europe, Asia, the Americas and Australia. We also work with specialized independent distributors and importers. As of June 30, 2018,
we employed approximately 4,800 people in more than 35 locations worldwide.
Sustaining growth trajectory with Sample to Insight portfolio
QIAGEN is focused on growth opportunities for its Sample to Insight portfolio across the continuum of molecular testing from basic
research to clinical healthcare. Among recent developments:
•

QuantiFERON-TB, QIAGEN’s gold-standard blood test for latent tuberculosis (TB) infection, continues to grow rapidly as
authorities embrace screening with interferon gamma release assays (IGRAs), such as QuantiFERON-TB Gold Plus (QFTPlus), as a more accurate and cost-efficient alternative to tuberculin skin tests. The World Health Organization (WHO)
recently added IGRAs to its Essential Diagnostics List. Additionally, The United Nations’ International Organization for
Migration (IOM), which provides healthcare to millions of displaced persons, selected QFT-Plus as its blood test for
detection of this bacterial infection. Also in the second quarter of 2018, new guidelines from the American Academy of
Pediatrics (AAP) recommended screening at-risk children as young as age two for latent TB infection, lowering the threshold
from the previous level at age five. QIAGEN is also enhancing automation to make screening even more efficient and
scalable through a new collaboration announced in July 2018 with Hamilton Robotics for pre-analytic workflows as a
complement to plans to begin offering kits in Europe to enable the analysis of QFT-Plus on DiaSorin’s LIAISON-family of
analyzers later this year.

•

QIAstat-Dx is off to a successful start in Europe and rapidly gaining recognition as the next-generation platform to provide
insights into complex disease syndromes. The first two QIAstat-Dx tests are now launched in Europe, delivering sample to
insight processing of extensive PCR (polymerase chain reaction) panels to evaluate respiratory and gastrointestinal
syndromes. In June, QIAGEN also exhibited the QIAstat-Dx platform at the American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO)
2018 Annual Meeting for its potential for rapid interrogation of key oncology targets. Teams are also working as planned
toward the U.S. regulatory submission of this system, along with the respiratory and gastrointestinal panel tests, for launch in
2019. A deep menu of additional tests is in development.

•

Next-generation sequencing (NGS) represents a rapidly growing portfolio at QIAGEN, with a target for more than $140
million of sales in 2018 compared to more than $115 million of sales in 2017. At the ASCO 2018 Annual Meeting, scientific
studies highlighted QIAGEN’s liquid biopsy and tissue biopsy solutions on the GeneReader NGS System. The utility of this
System was also expanded to offer the first complete Sample to Insight workflow for a range of hereditary diseases, with
customizable target enrichment panels and integrated bioinformatics. Also during the second quarter, researchers at the Mayo
Clinic in the U.S. published an important study in the Journal of the American Medical Association on the large-scale use of
custom QIAseq panels to demonstrate associations between pancreatic cancer and inherited mutations in six genes.

•

In Personalized Healthcare, QIAGEN announced a partnership with Freenome, a leader in artificial intelligence solutions
for genomics, to accelerate the development of companion diagnostics using NGS technologies in immuno-oncology in
collaboration with pharma companies. QIAGEN is also accelerating the commercialization of solutions in this area, rolling
out a Day-One Lab Readiness initiative with SRL, Inc., the largest clinical testing laboratory company in Japan to prepare for
the introduction of new companion diagnostics simultaneous with new drug approvals in the country.

•

Differentiated technologies are solutions designed to leverage QIAGEN’s global leadership in sample processing and assays.
A key area involves developing industry-leading advances for microbiome research, a fast-growing field with promise for
improving health and the environment. In the second quarter, QIAGEN launched the DNeasy PowerSoil Pro Kit worldwide as
the next generation of solutions for extraction of fungal and bacterial DNA from a range of soil samples. QIAGEN also introduced
QIAseq 16S/ITS Panels for NGS, along with the UCP Multiplex PCR Kit, to give scientists the most complete, unbiased
microbiome profiles available, with the aim of enhancing the scientific understanding of microbial communities.

Three- and Six-Month Periods Ended June 30, 2018 compared to Three- and Six-Month Periods Ended June 30, 2017
Net Sales
In the second quarter of 2018, net sales grew 8% to $377.2 million compared to $349.0 million in the second quarter of 2017, and was
impacted by two percentage points from positive currency movements against the U.S. dollar. We experienced good volume gains
across the consumables and related revenues portfolio and experienced solid placements of the QIAsymphony system. Net sales grew
10% in the first half of 2018 to $720.8 million from $656.7 million in the year-ago period, including approximately four percentage
points from positive currency movements against the U.S. dollar.
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Net sales by product category and customer class

Second quarter 2018

First six months 2018

Sales
(In $ m)

%
change

% of
sales

Sales
(In $ m)

%
change

% of
sales

Consumables and related revenues

$333

+8%

88%

$640

+10%

89%

Instruments

$44

+10%

12%

$81

+8%

11%

Molecular Diagnostics(1)

$187

+11%

49%

$348

+12%

48%

Applied Testing

$33

-1%

9%

$63

+2%

9%

Pharma

$74

+6%

20%

$145

+9%

20%

Academia

$83

+8%

22%

$164

+9%

23%

(1) Includes companion diagnostic co-development revenues (Q2 2018: $14 million, +91% and H1 2018: $22 million, +71% ) and U.S. HPV sales (Q2 2018: $5
million and H1 2018: $9 million)

Molecular Diagnostics grew 11% in the second quarter of 2018 with favorable currency movements resulting in one percentage point
of sales growth and advanced on gains in QuantiFERON-TB sales and solid growth in Personalized Healthcare, primarily due to
higher revenues from companion diagnostic pharma collaborations. In the first half of 2018, Molecular Diagnostics advanced 12%
with favorable currency movements resulting in three percentage points of sales growth compared to the year ago period.
Applied Testing declined 1% during the second quarter of 2018 with favorable currency movements resulting in a gain of two
percentage points. Sales in Applied Testing were impacted by the divestment of a portfolio of veterinary testing products in early 2018
and a challenging comparison to strong sales after a new U.S. forensics product launch in the year ago period. In the first half of 2018,
Applied Testing sales increased 2% with favorable currency movements resulting in three percentage points of sales growth.
Pharma sales rose 6% in the second quarter of 2018 compared to 2017 with favorable currency movements resulting in a gain of two
percentage point of sales growth. Pharma experienced growth in the Americas and EMEA regions contributing to this increase
partially offset by declines in the Asia-Pacific/Japan region. In the first half of 2018, Pharma sales increased 9% with favorable
currency movements resulting in three percentage points of sales growth.
Academia grew 8% in the second quarter of 2018 with favorable currency movements resulting in four percentage points of sales
growth. Academia experienced growth in both consumables and instrument sales with solid performance in the Asia-Pacific/Japan
region that more than offset weaker trends in the Americas region. In the first half of 2017, Academia sales increased 9% with
favorable currency movements resulting in a gain of approximately five percentage points of sales growth.
Net sales by geographic region

Second quarter 2018

First six months 2018

Sales
(In $ m)

%
change

% of
sales

Sales
(In $ m)

%
change

% of
sales

Europe / Middle East / Africa

$180
$120

+10%
+7%

48%
32%

$339
$236

+11%
+11%

47%
33%

Asia-Pacific / Japan

$77

+4%

20%

$144

+4%

20%

Americas

Q2 2018 and H1 2018: Rest of world represented less than 1% of net sales.

All regions contributed to the improved performance in the second quarter of 2018. The Americas region led with 10% growth with
significant growth in Molecular Diagnostics. The EMEA region experienced 7% growth in the second quarter of 2018 including
impacts of favorable currency of three percentage points as Italy, Switzerland and the United Kingdom experienced the most
significant growth . In addition to these gains, geographic expansion in the Middle East and Africa more than offset weaker sales in
France and Germany. The Asia-Pacific/Japan region experienced 4% growth with growth in China and Australia offset by sales
declines in South Korea before favorable currency impacts of three percentage points. The top seven emerging markets provided 16%
of sales and 7% of growth including the loss of approximately one percentage point of sales growth due to adverse currency
movements. During the first half of 2018, these top seven emerging markets delivered 6% growth including one percentage point of
favorable currency movements.
Gross Profit
Gross profit was $253.8 million (67% of net sales) for the three-month period ended June 30, 2018, as compared to $224.6 million
(64% of net sales) in the same period in 2017. Gross profit for the six-month period ended June 30, 2018 was $479.4 million (67% of
net sales) as compared to $420.4 million (64% of net sales) for the same period of 2017. Generally, our consumables and related
products have a higher gross margin than our instrumentation products and service arrangements. Fluctuations in the sales levels of
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these products and services can result in fluctuations in gross margin between periods. The 2018 growth in consumables contributed to
the higher margin in the six-month period ended June 30, 2018.
Amortization expense related to developed technology and patent and license rights, which have been acquired in business
combinations, is included in cost of sales. In the second quarter of 2018, the amortization expense on acquisition-related intangibles
within cost of sales decreased to $15.7 million compared to $20.9 million in the same period of 2017. For the six-month period ended
June 30, 2018, the amortization expense on acquisition-related intangible amortization was $30.4 million compared to $41.5 million in
the same period of 2017. The decrease in amortization expense is due to the completion of amortization for significant intangible
assets acquired in 2007 and contributed to the increase in gross margin during the six-month period ended June 30, 2018. We expect
that our acquisition-related intangible amortization will increase as a result of future acquisitions.
Research and Development
Research and development expenses increased by 5% to $39.6 million (11% of net sales) in the second quarter of 2018, compared to
$37.9 million (11% of net sales) in the same period in 2017. For the six-month period ended June 30, 2018, research and development
expenses increased by 6% to $79.2 million (11% of net sales) compared to $74.8 million (11% of net sales)for the same period in
2017. The increase in research and development costs in 2018 reflects our ongoing investments in NGS and our life sciences portfolio,
together with regulatory activity in support of new products. As we continue to discover, develop and acquire new products and
technologies, we expect to incur additional expenses related to facilities, licenses and employees engaged in research and
development. Additionally, research and development costs are expected to increase as a result of seeking regulatory approvals,
including U.S. FDA Pre-Market Approval (PMA), U.S. FDA 510(k) clearance and EU CE approval of certain assays or instruments.
Further, business combinations, along with the acquisition of new technologies, may increase our research and development costs in
the future. We have a strong commitment to innovation and expect to continue to make investments in our research and development
efforts.
Sales and Marketing
Sales and marketing expenses increased by 6% to $101.9 million (27% of net sales) in the second quarter of 2018 from $96.2 million
(28% of net sales) in the same period of 2017. For the six-month period ended June 30, 2018, sales and marketing expenses increased
by 5% to $197.9 million (27% of net sales) from $187.7 million (29% of net sales) for the same period in 2017. We experienced
efficiencies due to a lower cost base following the realignment of marketing activities as part of the 2016 restructuring projects which
were offset by higher personnel costs to the same period in 2017 as well as initiatives for new product launches. Sales and marketing
expenses are primarily associated with personnel, commissions, advertising, trade shows, publications, freight and logistics expenses,
and other promotional expenses. We anticipate that absolute sales and marketing costs will increase along with new product
introductions and growth in sales of our products, but decrease as a percentage of sales.
General and Administrative, Restructuring, Integration and Other, net
General and administrative, restructuring, integration and other costs, net were $48.9 million (13% of net sales) in the second quarter
of 2018 as compared to $58.4 million (17% of net sales) in the second quarter of 2017. During the six-month period ended June 30,
2018, we recorded general and administrative, restructuring, integration and other costs, net of $80.8 million (11% of net sales)
compared to $92.4 million (14% of net sales) for the same period of 2017. The decrease in the six-month period ended June 30, 2018
compared to the same period of 2017 reflects lower restructuring costs of $6.3 million compared to $16.5 million in the first six
months of 2017 as discussed in Note 4, a $7.9 million revaluation gain of a minority interest investment in connection with the
acquisition as discussed in Note 5, and overall lower acquisition and integration costs which were partially offset by litigation related
accruals and higher compensation costs. As we further integrate acquired companies and pursue opportunities to gain efficiencies, we
expect to continue to incur additional business integration costs in 2018. Over time, we believe the integration activities will reduce
expenses as we improve efficiency in the combined operations.
Acquisition-Related Intangible Amortization
Amortization expense related to developed technology and patent and license rights acquired in a business combination is included in
cost of sales. Amortization of trademarks and customer base acquired in a business combination is recorded in operating expense
under the caption “acquisition-related intangible amortization.” Amortization expenses of intangible assets not acquired in a business
combination are recorded within cost of sales, research and development, or sales and marketing based on the use of the asset.
We recorded amortization expense on acquisition-related intangibles within operating expense of $10.1 million during the quarter
ended June 30, 2018 compared to $9.7 million for same period in 2017. We recorded amortization expense on acquisition-related
intangibles within operating expense of $20.2 million during the six-month period ended June 30, 2018 compared to $19.4 million for
the same period in 2017. We expect that our acquisition-related intangible amortization will increase as a result of future acquisitions.
Other Income (Expense), net
Total other expense was $7.4 million and $16.2 million in the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018, respectively,
compared to $10.0 million and $17.2 million in the same periods in 2017. Total other expense, net is primarily the result of interest
expense, partially offset by interest income and other income (expense), including impacts of foreign currency transactions.
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Interest expense increased to $15.8 million during the quarter ended June 30, 2018 compared to $10.6 million in the same period of
2017. During the six-month periods ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, we recorded interest expense of $30.9 million and $20.7 million,
respectively. Interest costs primarily relate to debt, discussed in Note 9, "Debt" in the accompanying notes to the condensed
consolidated financial statements and the increase in interest expense reflects the issuance of cash convertible notes in the second half
of 2017.
For the three-month periods ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, interest income was $5.1 million and $1.7 million, respectively. For the
six-month period ended June 30, 2018, interest income increased to $9.8 million from $3.6 million in the same period in 2017. Interest
income includes interest earned on cash, cash equivalents and short term investments, income related to certain interest rate
derivatives as discussed in Note 7 "Derivatives and Hedging" in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements and
other components including the interest portion of operating lease transactions.
Other income, net was $3.4 million and $4.9 million in the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018, respectively, compared
to other expense, net of $1.1 million and $0.1 million in the same periods in 2017. Other income in 2018 primarily reflects the
unrealized gains, net on investments as discussed further in Note 5, which totaled $11.1 million and $13.6 million for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2018, respectively. In the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, we recorded a divestiture gain of $6.6
million as discussed in Note 3. Other income was partially offset by impairments, including investment impairments as discussed
further in Note 5, which totaled $9.0 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2018. For the three- and six-month periods
ended June 30, 2018, we recorded net losses on foreign currency transactions of $4.4 million and $6.6 million, respectively, compared
to $2.5 million, and $2.8 million in the same periods in 2017 due to foreign currency rate fluctuations.
Provision for Income Taxes
Our effective tax rates differ from The Netherlands statutory tax rate of 25% due in part to our operating subsidiaries being exposed to
effective tax rates ranging from zero to more than 34%. Fluctuations in the distribution of pre-tax (loss) income among our operating
subsidiaries can lead to fluctuations of the effective tax rate in the consolidated financial statements. In the second quarters of 2018
and 2017, our effective tax rates were 19.9% and (12.6)%, respectively. In the six-month periods ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
effective tax rates were 18.8% and (9.4)% respectively. Additionally, in 2018 and 2017, tax expense on foreign operations was
favorably impacted by lower income tax rates and partial tax exemptions on foreign income primarily derived from operations in
Germany, Singapore, Luxembourg, Ireland and Switzerland. These foreign tax benefits are due to a combination of favorable tax laws,
rules, rulings, and exemptions in these jurisdictions. In particular, we have pre-tax income in Germany which is statutorily exempt
from trade tax on intercompany foreign royalty income. Further, we have intercompany financing arrangements through Luxembourg
and Ireland in which the intercompany income is partially exempt.
In future periods, our effective tax rate may fluctuate from similar or other factors as discussed in “Changes in tax laws or their
application and the termination or reduction of certain government incentives, could adversely impact our overall effective tax rate,
results of operations or financial flexibility” in Item 3 Risk Factors of the Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended
December 31, 2017.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
To date, we have funded our business primarily through internally generated funds, debt and private and public sales of equity. Our
primary use of cash has been to support continuing operations and our investing activities, including capital expenditure requirements
and acquisitions. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we had cash and cash equivalents of $674.4 million and $657.7 million,
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents are primarily held in U.S. dollars and euros, other than those cash balances maintained in the
local currency of subsidiaries to meet local working capital needs. At June 30, 2018, cash and cash equivalents had increased by $16.7
million from December 31, 2017, primarily due to cash provided by operating activities of $166.2 million, partially offset by cash
used in investing activities of $120.5 million and cash used in financing activities of $25.4 million. As of June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, we had working capital of $746.4 million and $1.3 billion, respectively.
Operating Activities. For the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, we generated net cash from operating activities of $166.2
million and $129.5 million, respectively. While net income was $69.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, non-cash
components in income included $107.6 million of depreciation and amortization, $13.6 million of unrealized gains on investments,
and $10.6 million of non-cash impairments. Operating cash flows include a net decrease in working capital of $15.4 million excluding
changes in fair values of derivative instruments. The current period change in working capital is primarily due to increased inventories
and other long-term assets, which includes $30.0 million for prepaid royalties partially offset by increased accrued and other liabilities.
Because we rely heavily on cash generated from operating activities to fund our business, a decrease in demand for our products,
longer collection cycles or significant technological advances of competitors would have a negative impact on our liquidity.
Investing Activities. Approximately $120.5 million of cash was used in investing activities during the six months ended June 30,
2018 compared to $79.5 million for the same period in 2017. Cash used in investing activities during the six months ended June 30,
2018 consisted principally of $172.8 million cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired, $176.3 million paid for short-term
investments, $42.9 million paid for purchases of property, plant and equipment, $17.4 million cash paid for collateral assets, as well as
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$23.5 million paid for intangible assets. These activities were partially offset by $311.7 million from redemptions of short-term
investments.
Financing Activities. Financing activities used $25.4 million of cash for the six months ended June 30, 2018, primarily for purchase
of treasury shares totaling $20.8 million. This compares to cash provided by financing activities of $48.3 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2017. Cash provided by financing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2017 consisted primarily of $300.2
million net cash proceeds from the June 2017 German private placement partially offset by the capital repayment of $243.9 million
made to shareholders in connection with the January 2017 synthetic share buyback discussed in Note 12 "Equity."
Other Factors Affecting Liquidity and Capital Resources
In September 2017, we issued $400.0 million aggregate principal amount of Cash Convertible Senior Notes which are due in 2023
(2023 Notes), which are discussed fully in Note 9 "Debt." Interest on the 2023 Notes is payable semiannually in arrears at a rate of
0.500% per annum. The 2023 Notes will mature on September 13, 2023 unless repurchased or converted in accordance with their
terms prior to such date.
Additionally in 2017, we completed a German private placement of $329.9 million, net of issuance costs, consisting of several
tranches denominated in either U.S. dollars or Euro at either floating or fixed rates and due at various dates through June 2027 as
described in Note 9 "Debt."
In October 2016, we extended the maturity of our €400.0 million syndicated revolving credit facility, which now has a contractual life
until December 2021 of which no amounts were utilized at June 30, 2018. The facility can be utilized in euro, British pounds sterling,
Swiss franc or U.S. dollar and bears interest of 0.4% to 1.20% above three months EURIBOR, or LIBOR in relation to any loan not in
euro, and is offered with interest periods of one, two, three or six months. We have additional credit lines totaling €26.6 million with
no expiration date, none of which were utilized as of June 30, 2018.
In March 2014, we issued $730.0 million aggregate principal amount of Cash Convertible Senior Notes of which $430.0 million is due
in 2019 (2019 Notes) and $300.0 million is due in 2021 (2021 Notes). We refer to the 2019 Notes, 2021 Notes and the 2023 Notes,
collectively as the “Cash Convertible Notes” which are discussed fully in Note 9 "Debt." Interest on the 2019 and 2021 Notes is
payable semiannually in arrears on March 19 and September 19 of each year, at rates of 0.375% and 0.875% per annum for the 2019
Notes and 2021 Notes, respectively. The 2019 Notes will mature on March 19, 2019 and the 2021 Notes will mature on March 19,
2021, unless repurchased or converted in accordance with their terms prior to such date.
In October 2012, we completed a U.S. private placement through the issuance of new senior unsecured notes in a total amount of $400
million with a weighted average interest rate of 3.66% (settled on October 16, 2012). The notes were issued in three series: (1) $73
million 7-year term due in 2019 (3.19%); (2) $300 million 10-year term due in 2022 (3.75%); and (3) $27 million 12-year term due in
2024 (3.90%).
We also have capital lease obligations, including interest, in the aggregate amount of $0.7 million as of June 30, 2018.
Pursuant to the purchase agreements for certain acquisitions and other contractual arrangements, we could be required to make
additional contingent cash payments totaling up to $69.3 million based on the achievement of certain revenue and operating results
milestones as follows: $5.0 million in the remainder of 2018, $23.7 million in 2019, $16.8 million in 2020, $5.9 million in 2021, $5.9
million in 2023 and $5.0 million and $7.0 million payable in any 12-month period from now through 2028 and 2029, respectively,
based on the achievement of certain revenue or other milestones, regulatory approvals or clearances. Of the $69.3 million total
contingent obligation, we have assessed the fair value at June 30, 2018 to be $52.2 million, of which $27.0 million is included in
accrued and other current liabilities and $25.2 million is included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying condensed
consolidated balance sheet.
In January 2017, we completed a synthetic share repurchase that combined a direct capital repayment with a consolidation of shares.
The transaction was announced in August 2016 and involved an approach used by various large, multinational Dutch companies to
provide returns to shareholders in a faster and more efficient manner than traditional open-market purchases. $243.9 million was
repaid to shareholders through the transaction and the outstanding number of common shares was reduced by 8.9 million, or 3.7%. As
discussed further in Note 12, the capital repayment program was completed in January 2017.
On April 27, 2016, we announced the launch of our fourth $100 million share repurchase program. As discussed in Note 12, during the
third quarter of 2017, we completed the fourth share repurchase program and repurchased 1.9 million QIAGEN shares for $61.0
million (including transaction costs).
On January 31, 2018, we announced our fifth share repurchase program of up to $200 million of our common shares. During the
second quarter of 2018, we repurchased 0.8 million QIAGEN shares for $29.6 million (including transaction costs) of which $20.8
million was paid as of June 30, 2018.
We expect that cash from financing activities will continue to be impacted by issuances of our common shares in connection with our
equity compensation plans and that the market performance of our stock will impact the timing and volume of the issuances.
Additionally, we may make future acquisitions or investments requiring cash payments, the issuance of additional equity or debt
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financing.
We believe that funds from operations, existing cash and cash equivalents, together with the proceeds from our public and private
sales of equity, and availability of financing facilities, will be sufficient to fund our planned operations and expansion during the
coming year. However, any global economic downturn may have a greater impact on our business than currently expected, and we
may experience a decrease in the sales of our products, which could impact our ability to generate cash. If our future cash flows from
operations and other capital resources are not adequate to fund our liquidity needs, we may be required to obtain additional debt or
equity financing or to reduce or delay our capital expenditures, acquisitions or research and development projects. If we cannot obtain
financing on a timely basis or at satisfactory terms, or implement timely reductions in our expenditures, our business could be
adversely affected.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Our market risk relates primarily to interest rate exposures on cash, marketable securities, and borrowings and foreign currency
exposures on intercompany and third-party transactions. The overall objective of our risk management strategy is to reduce the
potential negative earnings effects from changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates. Exposures are managed through
operational methods and financial instruments. We do not use financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Our exposure
to market risk from changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates has not changed materially from our exposure as discussed
in Item 11 of our Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Foreign Currency
QIAGEN N.V.’s functional currency is the U.S. dollar and our subsidiaries’ functional currencies are generally the local currencies of
the respective countries in which they are located. All amounts in the financial statements of entities whose functional currency is not
the U.S. dollar are translated into U.S. dollar equivalents at exchange rates as follows: (1) assets and liabilities at period-end rates,
(2) income statement accounts at average exchange rates for the period, and (3) components of shareholders’ equity at historical rates.
Translation gains or losses are recorded in shareholders’ equity, and transaction gains and losses are reflected in net income. Foreign
currency transactions in the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2018 resulted in net losses of $4.4 million and $6.6 million,
respectively, and $2.5 million and $2.8 million in the same periods ended 2017, respectively, and are included in other income
(expense), net.
Derivatives and Hedging
In the ordinary course of business, we use derivative instruments, including swaps, forwards and/or options, to manage potential losses
from foreign currency exposures and variable rate debt. The principal objective of such derivative instruments is to minimize the risks
and/or costs associated with global financial and operating activities. We do not utilize derivative or other financial instruments for
trading or speculative purposes. We recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet, measure those
instruments at fair value and recognize the change in fair value in earnings in the period of change, unless the derivative qualifies as an
effective hedge that offsets certain exposures. In determining fair value, we consider both the counterparty credit risk and our own
creditworthiness. To determine our own credit risk, we estimated our own credit rating by benchmarking the price of our outstanding
debt to publicly-available comparable data from rated companies. Using the estimated rating, we quantify our credit risk by reference
to publicly-traded debt with a corresponding rating.
Foreign Currency Derivatives. As a globally active enterprise, we are subject to risks associated with fluctuations in foreign
currencies in our ordinary operations. This includes foreign currency-denominated receivables, payables, debt, and other balance sheet
positions including intercompany items. We manage our balance sheet exposure on a group-wide basis using foreign exchange options
and cross-currency swaps.
Interest Rate Derivatives. We are using interest rate derivatives to align our portfolio of interest bearing assets and liabilities with our
risk management objectives. We have entered into interest rate swaps in which we agreed to exchange, at specified intervals, the
difference between fixed and floating interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount.
We also make use of economic hedges. Further details of our derivative and hedging activities can be found in Note 7 to the
accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements.
Recent Authoritative Pronouncements
For information on recent accounting pronouncements impacting our business, see Note 2 to the accompanying condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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Application of Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of our financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingencies as of the
date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Critical
accounting policies are those that require the most complex or subjective judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates
about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain. Thus, to the extent that actual events differ from management’s estimates and
assumptions, there could be a material impact on the financial statements. In applying our critical accounting policies, at times we
used accounting estimates that either required us to make assumptions about matters that were highly uncertain at the time the estimate
was made or were reasonably likely to change from period to period, having a material impact on the presentation of our results of
operations, financial position or cash flows. Our critical accounting policies are those related to revenue recognition, share-based
compensation, income taxes, investments, variable interest entities, goodwill and other intangible assets, purchase price allocation and
fair value measurements.
Our critical accounting policies are discussed further in Item 5 of our Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31,
2017. Actual results in these areas could differ from management’s estimates. Except as discussed below in connection with the
adoption of ASC 606, there have been no significant changes in our critical accounting policies during 2018.
Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenue when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration that is expected to be received for those goods or services. Identifying performance obligations in a contract,
estimating the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate
performance obligation requires management’s judgments and estimates. Sales arrangements which require a measure of progress
toward completion by measuring actual hours incurred to date as a proportion of the total budgeted hours of the project also involves
management's judgments and estimates. While the majority of our sales agreements contain standard terms and conditions, we do
enter into agreements that contain multiple products or services or non-standard terms and conditions. Sometimes it is difficult to
determine whether there is more than one performance obligation under a sales aggrement and if so, how and when revenue should be
recognized is subject to certain estimates or assumptions. Should our judgments and estimates not be correct, revenue recognized for
any reporting period could be adversely affected.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We did not use special purpose entities and did not have off-balance-sheet financing arrangements as of June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017.
Contractual Obligations
There were no material changes at June 30, 2018 from the contractual obligations disclosed in Item 5 of our Annual Report on Form
20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Legal Proceedings
For information on legal proceedings, see Note 15 to the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements.
While no assurances can be given regarding the outcome of the proceedings described in Note 15, based on information currently
available, we believe that the resolution of these matters is unlikely to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or
results of future operations for QIAGEN N.V. as a whole. However, because of the nature and inherent uncertainties of litigation,
should the outcomes be unfavorable, certain aspects of our business, financial condition, and results of operations and cash flows
could be materially adversely affected.
Risk Factors
Material risks that may affect our results of operations and financial position appear in Part 1, Item 3 "Key Information" of the Annual
Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017. There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in
Item 3 of our Form 20-F.
_________________________________
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